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Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Hamilton Township Public Schools
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The annual comprehensive financial report of the Hamilton Township School District for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board of Education
(Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report are accurate in all material
respects and are reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds of the district. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the district's financial activities have been included.

The annual comprehensive financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical, and
single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the district's organizational chart, and a
list of principal officials. The financial section includes the general-purpose financial statements and
schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes selected financial and
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The district is required to undergo an
annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
Uniform Guidance Revised, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations," and the
State Treasury OMB Circular Letter 15-08, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid Payments." Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal
control structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, is
included in the single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES:

The Hamilton Township School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board as established by GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account
groups of the District are included in this report. The Hamilton Township Board of Education and all its schools
constitute the District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services and programs appropriate to grade levels
pre-kindergarten (three and four year olds) through eight. These include general education, bilingual and ESL,
gifted and talented, basic skills, and special education for special needs youngsters. The following details the
changes in the student enroliment of the District over the last six years:

Annual October 15 Student

Enrollment

Fiscal Student Percent

Year Enroliment Change
2022-2023 2,793 -1.52%
2021-2022 2,836 -2.98%
2020-2021 2,923 4.17%
2019-2020 2,923 4.17%
2018-2019 2,806 -4.66%
2017-2018 2,943 -3.03%

Believe we can...Together.
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2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK:

Hamilton Township is the largest geographical municipality in the State, with room for growth. In addition to
this large geographic area, several areas of the Township have been designated as high-density growth areas,
thereby contributing further to growth and development. Charter schools, school choice, and the continuing
economic impact of the shrinking gaming industry has had an impact on Hamilton Township’s school
population.

In 2022-2023 the district operated three school facilities. The Shaner School housing full day preschool and
kindergarten students; the Hess School housing grades one through five; and the Davies Middle School
housing grades six, seven and eight. The Duberson School remains vacant and unable to be utilized for any
purpose.

The Municipality of Hamilton Township, as other surrounding areas, has in recent years experienced budget
cuts across the board, operating with less funding than previous years. Fiscal years 2018 and 2019 saw a
reversal in this trend, with a small uptick in both revenue and tax ratables. However, predictably in fiscal years
2020 and 2021 ratables have once again decreased. From fiscal year 2022 to 2023 the ratables have
increased slightly. Over the years the Township has accumulated several tax ratables inclusive of shopping
plazas, a movie theater, a variety of retail stores, the Atlantic City Race Track, the Hamilton Mall, Festival Mall
at Hamilton, and a Wal-Mart store. The ability of the brick and mortar retail stores to adapt and to successfully
compete with online retailers is critical to the Township.

The coronavirus pandemic continued to impact millions of people all over the United States in 2020-2021. This
is especially evident in Atlantic County, the home of Atlantic City and nine casinos. Thousands of people in the
county lost work as a result of casino closures related to the pandemic. According to Pew Research, workers
in the service sector have lower-than-average earnings to begin with and are disproportionately impacted by
pandemic-related layoffs.

Although the district receives no direct funding benefits from the casinos, they have historically brought about
residential and industrial growth for Hamilton Township through employment to many of our families. How
they fare has enormous implications throughout the Region and the community.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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3. MAJOR INITIATIVES:
The vision of this educational institution:

“We are the Hamilton Township School Community
committed to learning, growing, and achieving together.”

The spirit of our vision statement is reflected and reinforced in the district's goals and initiatives.
Administrators and teachers work to use several sources of data to drive instruction. These sources of data,
in the area of English language Arts (ELA) and mathematics, differ slightly according to student age. The New
Jersey Student Learning Standards are the basis for the district’s curriculum. Our curriculum is monitored and
updated with guidance from the Department of Education.

Our primary, elementary and middle school grades implement an ELA balanced literacy workshop model for
instruction. More specifically grades K-8 is closely aligned with Lucy Caulkin’s instructional workshop model.
Our district partnered with Columbia University to gain knowledge and expertise in perfecting Lucy Caulkin’'s
Readers/Writers Workshop Model to best meet the needs of the students of our district. The district has
expanded its use of this model, as it is also implemented in Social Studies and Science in grades one through
five.

The primary and elementary schools operate on a semester basis and the middle schools (PreK-8) operate on
trimesters with the idea of giving students ample time for instruction and independent practice. A
standards-based interim progress report and report card is used in grades 1-5 for reporting grades to families,
while a traditional one is used in grades 6-8. The Teaching Strategies GOLD report card is used for Preschool
and Kindergarten students.

A one to one technology initiative is an integral component of all aspects of district wide curriculums,
instruction and programs. Every classroom in the elementary and middle schools is equipped with a Smart
Projector or Television, while every teacher is equipped with a PC, laptop or chrome book. In addition to this,
the Davies School IMC has been updated to a technology rich instructional environment with the iPads,
Chromebooks, Dell laptops, a green screen, and a virtual reality computer/driving simulator, and Kindles.

CURRICULUM MATERIALS:
English Language Arts:

The Readers/Writers Workshop Model closely aligned to Lucy Caulkin’s Model is used in kindergarten
through grade five for the instruction of English Language Arts. In this model, teachers follow the Four
Kinds of Reading/Writing which are designed for independent and instructional levels. Fountas &
Pinnell is used for benchmarking student reading levels. Libraries of leveled readers in every
classroom support reading development using skills and effective strategies for processing texts at
increasingly challenging levels of difficulty. Students are instructed in guided writing through
interactive writing techniques to build fluency through repeated exposure. Supplementary materials
include Edmentum, CommonLit, NewsELA, Scholastic Scope/Action, Actively Learn and Vocabulary
Workshop. The Holt Company’s reading series is utilized in grades six, seven and eight as well as
Houghton-Mifflin Harcourt's (HMH) READ 180, System 44 and Reading Inventory (RI). Supplemental
materials were added to each grade level to support the students and staff with both reading and
writing. All fiction and non-fiction books (classroom sets warehoused in the bookroom) were leveled to
be in alignment with HMH RI Lexile Levels.

Believe we can...Together.
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Mathematics:

Bridges in Mathematics series by the Math Learning Center is used in grades Kindergarten through
grade 4. Bridges is a comprehensive K—4 curriculum that equips teachers to fully address state
standards in a rigorous, engaging, and accessible manner. Students gain a deep understanding of
concepts, proficiency with key skills, and the ability to solve complex problems. The curriculum is
composed of three distinct integrated components: Problems & Investigations, Work Places and
Number Corner.

In grades 5-8 students utilize the enVision Math series by the Savvas Learning Company. enVisions
focuses on deep conceptual math understanding aided by visual models, student-centered projects,
3-act tasks, and personalized learning.

Science:

Amplify is utilized with students in grades one through five. Amplify meshes hands on investigations,
literacy rich activities and interactive digital tools to support state standards. Amplify is set to help our
students read, write, think and argue like scientists and engineers. Teacher’s editions and leveled
readers are the primary resources used for instruction in kindergarten through grade 5. Grades six
through eight use BrainPop and IXL. Both series are aligned to the New Jersey Student Learning
Standards for Science to support the integrated written curriculum.

Social Studies:

The National Geographic Series for Social Studies instruction for grades kindergarten through six is
used by all classroom teachers. Students are instructed from both leveled readers and traditional
textbooks to support the written curriculum. Grade seven utilizes the Glencoe Series while grade
eight utilizes the Pearson Series for both history and civics instruction. Teachers in grades 6 through 8
piloted the NatGeo series from the Cengage Company in the 2020-2021 school year for adoption in
the 2021-2022 school year

World Languages:

Spanish is the selected World Language program implemented in our school district. The program
now spans kindergarten through grade eight with formal instruction in grades two through eight and
informal instruction in kindergarten through grade one.

Visual and Performing Arts:

Art and Music instruction is the primary premise of our Visual and Performing Arts Curriculum while
cultural and historical threads of dance and theater are woven throughout instruction that is provided
to students in kindergarten through grade five on a weekly basis. For grades six through eight in
middle school, the courses focus on art projects, humanities, art appreciation, critique, and technology
integration. A computer lab has been added to provide instruction in graphic arts and internet-based
art projects.

Health:

The Great Body Workshop is the resource used for instruction in kindergarten through grade five. This
program is presented to students as a consumable, “take home” booklet that is updated each year to
provide current health information. The text Healthy Teens is utilized for instruction in grades six,
seven and eight.

Believe we can...Together.
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STAFF TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT:

Staff training and professional development is designed and implemented based on
teacher/administrative surveys and district needs. All training and professional development is directly
linked to the Board of Education Goals, Superintendent Goals, the District & School Professional
Development Plans, as well as each school’s Title One School-Wide Plan. Some of the highlights
relative to the district’s professional development and staff training are as follows:

e Mental Health Initiative
o Life Space Crisis Intervention Training
o Youth Mental Health First Aid
o Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports (PBIS)
e Curriculum writing in all subject areas
e Technology — Use of online technologies to support virtual learning; Google Classroom,
Screencastify, Pear Deck, NearPod, etc.
e Classroom management and student support
o Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports (PBIS)
o Non-violent Crisis Intervention (NCI)
o Mental Health Strategies/Mindfulness
Link It (benchmarking, SGO development, warehousing, data analysis)
STEAM
Student achievement (academic/behavioral/social)
Student Growth Objectives (SGO) development
School Wide Enrichment Program (SWEP)
Multilingual Language Learners
Review of |.LE.P. and Strategies
Data Driven Decision Making
Readers/Writers Workshop Model via Professional Learning Communities
iObservation and its function as an evaluation tool
Workshops/Vendors (ETTC, EIRC, Stockton University, Rowan University) - Ongoing workshops
in mathematics, language arts literacy and data analysis, as well as, speakers and presenters on
a wide range of topics such as inclusion for Special Education students, character education,
crisis and emergency management, and other topics. Special emphasis was placed on the
content areas (language arts literacy & mathematics) related to statewide standardized testing in
grades three through eight.
e Creative Curriculum, Teaching Strategies GOLD, and other professional development through
PEA

PROGRAMS:
Character Education:

Hamilton Township School District's Character Education initiative originally began in September of
the 2000-2001 school year. The district continues to implement this initiative through positive
behavioral interventions and supports (PBIS) approach. Beginning in September 2016 the district
initiated the Second Step Social Emotional Learning Program. This program is used in every
classroom across all three district schools, grades preschool through 8th grade.

Early Childhood Education:

Hamilton Township School District’'s Preschool program is a combined in-district and community based
program housed at the Joseph C. Shaner School and Gateway Head Start. The Preschool Education
Aid (PEA) effectively allows the district to expand its preschool program in an attempt to meet our

Believe we can...Together.
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projected universe. Creative Curriculum is our current program of instruction, while Teaching
Strategies GOLD is our assessment platform.

A full day kindergarten program provides materials purchased for mathematics, language arts literacy,
and creative curriculum to support a full day program for all recommended academic and
developmental areas.

Gifted and Talented:
The Elementary Gifted & Talented Program may consist of:

A School-Wide Enrichment Program (SWEP) Gr. K-5
Push in and/or Pull-Out Programs in grades K-5
Curriculum Compacting

Cluster Grouping in Regular Classroom
Differentiation

Accelerated Learning

Social Emotional Learning Support

School-Wide Enrichment Program (SWEP) Gr. K-5

The Middle School Gifted & Talented Program may consist of the following:
Core Content Acceleration and Advancement

Curriculum Compacting

Cluster Grouping in Regular Classroom

Differentiation

Accelerated Learning

Extended Related Arts (Grades 7 & 8)

Social Emotional Learning Supports

After School activities

Basic Skills:

The Basic Skills Improvement (BSI) Program is a hybrid program inclusive of primarily in-class
support, team-teaching classes coupled with targeted pull-out classes. Both classroom settings are
designed to provide instruction to students experiencing difficulty in English language arts and/or
mathematics. Working cooperatively with the New Jersey State Department of Education’s minimum
level of proficiency mandates and Title |, supplemental instruction materials and teacher resources are
available for students. The goal of the Basic Skills Program is to prepare students to meet with
success in achieving mastery of the New Jersey Student Learning Standards as measured by the
mandatory statewide standardized assessments.

The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) fully supports the principle upon which the
Federal Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) is predicated, that all elements of the education system
should support the achievement of challenging academic standards by all students. The educational
priorities needed to achieve the reform of education were formulated into the Strategic Plan for

Systemic Improvement of Education in New Jersey.
The Basic Skills Improvement Program has the following goals:

To develop the basic skills necessary to function successfully in everyday life according to each
student’s individual ability level.

To develop and implement a Basic Skills Improvement Program which would provide a variety of
experiences to meet the needs of students with a deficiency in basic functional language arts literacy
and mathematical skills.

Believe we can...Together.
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3. To assist the students in developing positive attitudes toward themselves, their school, and the

community.
4. To ensure a continual means of communication between parents, teachers, students, and the
community.
Technology:

Hamilton Township School District has provided the following additions:

Shaner School

Added security cameras to parking lots - yes

Added security cameras to playground - yes

Added quick access buttons for evacuation, perimeter secure, shelter in place - yes
Replaced PA system in gym and add additional courtyard speakers - yes

Added additional security cameras to cafe

-

Davies School
Added additional security cameras to cafe - yes

e Added additional speakers to cafe - yes
e Added quick access buttons for evacuation, perimeter secure, shelter in place - yes
e Built TV studio in former IMC - yes

Hess School

e Added additional security cameras to cafe - yes
e Refurbished auditorium/purchased new AV equipment - yes
e Added quick access buttons for evacuation, perimeter secure, shelter in place - yes

District

e Added quick access buttons for evacuation, perimeter secure, shelter in place - yes
e Printed new hallway and classroom identification labels for the district - yes
e Added new radio communication system district wide - yes

4. INTERNAL A NTIN NTROLS:

Management of the Township of Hamilton School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an
internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District
management.
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As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal
control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as to
determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS:

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget
approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the
special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital
improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal
year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated are reported as reservations of fund
balance at June 30, 2023.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS:

The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system
of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are
explained in "Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION:

On June 30, 2023, the District’s outstanding debt issues included $24,930,000 in school obligation bonds. All
debt existing as of June 30, 2023 will be fully retired during the 2039-2040 school year.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT:

The investment policy of the Township of Hamilton School District is guided by state statute as detailed in
"Notes to the Financial Statements," Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which
requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect govern-mental
units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds
are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ford, Scott, and Associates, L.L.C. was appointed
by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed
to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984, and the related Office of Management and Budget
Circular Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08. The auditor's report on the
general-purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included
in the financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included
in the single audit section of this report.

10. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:
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| would like to express my appreciation to the members of the Hamilton Township Board of Education for their
concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district, and thereby
contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation.

Respectfully submitted,

Jeffery Zito, Ed. D.
Superintendent

CC: John Deserable, Interim Business Administrator
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PHONE 609.399.6333 < FAX 609.399.3710
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Hamilton Township School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamilton Township School
District, in the County of Atlantic, New Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamilton Township School District, as of June 30,
2023, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Hamilton Township School District and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Hamilton Township School
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from an error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, we:

+ exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

* Obtain an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

+  Conclude whether in our judgement there are conditions or events considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charge with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control — related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Required
Supplementary Information identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Hamilton Township School District’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
non-major fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the schedule of state financial assistance
as required by NJ OMB 15-08 and the introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of
expenditures of federal awards, as required by the Uniform Guidance, and the schedule of state financial
assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report. The other information comprises of the introductory and statistical sections and have not been
subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 27,
2023 on our consideration of the Hamilton Township School District’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Hamilton Township School District’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Fond, Scott & ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leonw P. (octello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

November 27, 2023
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Township of Hamilton School District (“District”) annual financial report presents our
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on
June 30, 2023. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the
District’s financial statement.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position of the District increased compared to the prior year as a result of an excess of
revenues over expenses.

e The State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $1,745,663.00 during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023 for the employer’s share of social security contributions. The State of New
Jersey also paid $7,926,418.00 in pension contributions and retiree health coverage for TPAF
members as calculated on their base salaries on behalf of the District. This amount, which is
not budgeted, is included as both a revenue and appropriation in the financial statements.

e Asindicated by New Jersey State Statutes, the unreserved fund balance of the general fund is
limited to 2% of the total general fund expenditures or $250,000, whichever is greater. Any
excess is required to be designated as Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus and
included in the next year’s budget as budgeted fund balance. As of June 30, 2023, the District
had excess surplus of $7,996,551.10, of which $3,959,427.77 was required to be budgeted as
a revenue for the year ending June 30, 2024 and $4,037,123.33 is designated for subsequent
year budgets.

e During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the District’s revenues were $2,840,720.88 more
than total expenses in the fund financial statements. The District received additional revenues
from various miscellaneous sources during the 2023 fiscal year and was able to hold any
increases in expenditures to a minimum..

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts — management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the
basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that presents
combining statements for special revenue, proprietary, and fiduciary funds. The basic financial
statements include two kinds of statements that present different views of the District.

e The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term
and short-term information about the District’s overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the
District's government, reporting on the District's operations in more detail than the
government-wide statements.

» The governmental funds statements tell how general government services like
instruction were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future
spending.

» Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the
activities the District operates like businesses, such as the milk program.

» Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships — like
the unemployment trust fund — in which the District acts solely as a frustee or agent
for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial
statements. Figure A-1 shows how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to
one another. Figure A-1 summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including
the portion of the District's government they cover and the types of information they contain. The

16



remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis explains the structure

and contents of each of the statements.

Figure A-1

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government wide

Fund Statements

Major Features of Township of Hamilton Board of Education’s

Governmental Proprietary Fiduciary
Statements Funds Funds Funds
Scope Entire District The activities of Activities the Instances in which
(except fiduciary the District that District operates the District is the
funds) are not similar to private | trustee or agent for
proprietary or businesses; food someone else’s
fiduciary, such as service resources, such as
food service and payroll agency and
student activities student activities.
Required Statement of net Balance sheet Statement of net Statement of
financial position position fiduciary net position
statements Statement of

Statement of
activities

revenues,
expenditures,

and changes in
fund balances

Statement of
revenues,
expenses, and
changes in net
position

Statement of
cash flows

Statement of
changes in fiduciary
net position

Accounting basis
and
measurement
focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Modified accrual
accounting and
current financial
resources focus

Accrual
accounting and
economic
resources focus

Accrual accounting
and economic
resources focus

Type of
asset/liability
information

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and capital,
and short-term and
long-term.

Only assets
expected to be
used up and
liabilities that
come due during
the year or soon
thereafter; no
capital assets
included.

All assets and
liabilities, both
financial and
capital, and
short-term and
long-term.

All assets and
liabilities, both short-
term and long-term.

Type of
inflow/outflow
information

All revenues and
expenses during the
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

Revenues for
which cash is
received during
or soon after the
end of the year;
expenditures
when goods or
services have
been received
and payment is
due during the
year or soon
thereafter

All revenues and
expenses,
regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.

All revenues and
expenses during
year, regardless of
when cash is
received or paid.
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Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all
of the government’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District's net position and how they have changed.
Net position — the difference between the District’'s assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the
District’s financial health, or position.

e Over time, increases or decreases in the District’'s net position are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

e To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial
factors such as changes in the Township’s property tax base and the condition of the District's
facilities.

The government-wide financial statements of the District are divided into two categories:

o Governmental activities — most of the District’'s basic services are included here, such as
instruction, transportation, administration, and plant operations. Property taxes and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

e Business-type activities — the District charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of
certain services it provides.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District's most significant
funds — not the District as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the District uses to keep track
of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

The District has three kinds of funds:

e Governmental funds — Most of the District’'s basic services are included in governmental
funds, which focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to
cash flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in
the near future to finance the District's programs. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide
additional information at the bottom of the governmental funds statement that explains the
relationship (or differences) between them.

e Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges customers a fee are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide
both long- and short-term financial information. In fact, the District’'s enterprise funds (one
type of proprietary fund) are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detail
and additional information, such as cash flows.

e Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for other assets that - because of a
trust arrangement — can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The District is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of
the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in separate statement of fiduciary net position and
a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities from the District’s
government-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance
its operations.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net position - The District's governmental activities net position increased between fiscal years 2022

and 2023 as a result of an excess of revenues over expenses.

position increased due to an excess of revenues over costs.

Current and other assets

Capital assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows
of resources

Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
of resources

Net position

Invested in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

related to instruction, administration, and plant operations.

The business-type activities net

Property taxes

Unrestricted Federal and State aid
Tuition

Operating grants and contributions
Other

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
17,153,423.26 14,671,528.65 2,270,679.82 2,008,050.32 19,424,103.08 16,679,578.97
64,910,508.50 66,404,708.24 23,222.87 24,565.22 64,933,731.37 66,429,273.46
82,063,931.76 81,076,236.89 2,293,902.69 2,032,615.54 84,357,834.45 83,108,852.43
727,436.22 575,703.70 - - 727,436.22 575,703.70
36,431,450.68 36,051,075.27 33,506.49 39,855.53 36,464,957.17 36,090,930.80
2,936,563.43 3,383,894.14 14,689.92 13,429.22 2,951,253.35 3,397,323.36
39,368,014.11 39,434,969.41 48,196.41 53,284.75 39,416,210.52 39,488,254.16
2,051,131.00 5,189,237.00 - - 2,051,131.00 5,189,237.00
39,980,508.50 40,139,708.24 23,222.87 24,565.22 40,003,731.37 40,164,273.46
15,160,893.46 11,933,401.51 15,160,893.46 11,933,401.51
(13,769,179.09)  (15,045,375.57) 2,222,483.41 1,954,765.57 (11,546,695.68) (13,090,610.00)
41,372,222.87 37,027,734.18 2,245,706.28  1,979,330.79 43,617,929.15 39,007,064.97
Net position of the District decreased slightly due to an excess of expenses over revenue. Also,
included in long-term liabilities are amounts due to be paid on compensated absences.
Changes in net position - The total general fund revenue of the District decreased $4,421,454.57
due to a decrease in funding received on special revenue grant programs.
Approximately 42% of the District’'s governmental funds revenue comes from the State of New Jersey
in the form of non-restricted federal and state aid. This aid is based on the District’'s enrollment as well
as other factors related to the District’s formula aid which is a relationship of the adequacy budget and
the Township’s property values and income of the residents. The District expenses are primarily
2023 2022
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
22,114,006.00 32.85% 21,533,569.00 30.02%
28,412,697.64 42.20% 26,967,842.61 37.59%
445,695.11 0.66% 391,499.93 0.55%
15,039,076.18 22.34% 21,525,696.36 30.00%
1,309,753.04 1.95% 1,324,074.64 1.85%
67,321,227.97 100.00% 71,742,682.54 100.00%

Totals
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Governmental Activities

The following schedule summarizes the governmental and business-type activities of the District
during the 2023 and 2022 fiscal years:

Revenues
Program revenue
Charges for services
Grants and entitlements
General revenues
Property taxes
State aid entitlements
Other
Total revenues

Expenses
Instruction:
Regular
Special Education
Other Instruction
Support services:
Tuition
Student & instruction related
School administration services
General & business admin
Plant operations & maint
Pupil transportation
Capital Outlay
Interest on long-term debt
Business-type activities
Total expenses

Special ltems:
Increase in
net position

Business-type Activities

Operating and non-operating

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
445,695.11 391,499.93 1,110,156.18 678,160.72 1,555,851.29 1,069,660.65
15,039,076.18  21,525,696.36 1,523,037.37  2,353,421.56 16,562,113.55  23,879,117.92
22,114,006.00  21,533,569.00 22,114,006.00  21,533,569.00
29,176,527.64  27,720,277.61 29,176,527.64  27,720,277.61
545,923.04 571,639.64 16,253.85 3,331.62 562,176.89 574,971.26
67,321,227.97  71,742,682.54 2,649,447.40 3,034,913.90 69,970,675.37  74,777,596.44
21,549,368.74  25,606,538.12 - - 21,549,368.74  25,606,538.12
7,330,513.30 8,810,305.97 - - 7,330,513.30 8,810,305.97
3,053,387.34 3,390,953.94 - - 3,053,387.34 3,390,953.94
941,576.17 1,292,911.95 - - 941,576.17 1,292,911.95
13,028,077.10  11,526,881.69 - - 13,028,077.10  11,526,881.69
2,673,110.62 2,876,657.34 - - 2,673,110.62 2,876,657.34
2,595,807.51 2,533,803.42 - - 2,595,807.51 2,533,803.42
6,416,427.07 6,593,620.53 - - 6,416,427.07 6,593,620.53
4,418,665.09 4,009,531.20 - - 4,418,665.09 4,009,531.20
158,059.32 - - - 158,059.32 -
811,747.03 851,807.72 - - 811,747.03 851,807.72
2,380,471.91  2,310,320.27 2,380,471.91 2,310,320.27
62,976,739.29  67,493,011.88 2,380,471.91  2,310,320.27 65,357,211.20  69,803,332.15
(85,687.60) (2,600.00) (2,600.00) (85,687.60)
4,344,488.68 4,163,983.06 266,375.49 724,593.63 4,610,864.17 4,888,576.69

revenues of the District's business-type activities decreased

$385,466.50 from the previous year and expenses increased by $70,151.64. During the 2022 school
year, meals were provided to students at no cost and eligible meals claimed were reimbursed by the
State of New Jersey based on the higher free lunch rate. In fiscal year 2023, students were charged
for their meals and eligible meals were reimbursed at various rates, depending on status such as paid,

reduced, or free.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As of the year end, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $41,372,222.87
which is $4,344,488.69 higher than the beginning of the year. This increase is primarily due to an
overall reduction in expenditures, in particular regular instruction.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

As further explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements, annual appropriated budgets are
prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue funds. The budgets are
submitted to the County office and, as a Type Il School District, are approved by the voters annually if
the District exceeds the statutory CAP limitations. Effective with the 2012-2013 school year, if the
District stays within the statutory limitations, there is no vote on the budget by the District voters and
Board Members are elected at the time of the general election in November. Transfers of
appropriations may be made by Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. The District is
permitted to encumber funds throughout the year for purchases ordered but not yet received. Any
open encumbrances as of June 30" carry over to the next fiscal year and are added to the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget.

After adjusting total revenue reported on Exhibit C-1 for the Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contribution and on-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, which are not budgeted, the District’s actual
revenue exceeded the budgeted revenue by $747,246.39. This is a result of excess unbudgeted
miscellaneous revenue, such as interest, refunds of prior year expenditures, as well as additional
tuition revenue. Again, after adjusting for the Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution and on-
behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, actual expenditures were below the budgeted appropriations by
$5,621,742.93.  This can be attributed to overall savings in the various expense line items of the
District, in particular transportation costs, tuition, and health benefits.

CAPITAL ASSET
Capital Assets

At the end of 2023, the District had invested $64,933,731.37 in a broad range of capital assets,
including land, buildings, vehicles and machinery.

Governmental Activities Business-type Acticities Totals

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Land $ 1,423,600.00 1,423,600.00 1,423,600.00 1,423,600.00
Construction in Progress 16,845,497.19 16,678,252.19 16,845,497.19  16,678,252.19
Buildings and Bldg
improvements 45,442 521.75 47,138,255.79 45,442,521.75 47,138,255.79
Machinery & equipment 1,198,889.56 1,164,600.26 23,222.87 24,565.22 1,222,112.43 1,189,165.48
Total $ 64,910,508.50 66,404,708.24 23,222.87 24,565.22 64,933,731.37  66,429,273.46

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Long-term Debt

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable

Obligations under Capital Leases
Lease Liability

Amortization of Bond Premium
Compensated Absences Payable
Net Pension Liability

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences Payable

Business-Type Activities

Balance Retired/ Balance
June 30, 2022 Issued Adjusted June 30, 2023
$ 26,265,000.00 1,335,000.00 24,930,000.00
0.00 0.00
135,803.35 143,968.44 74,845.78 204,926.01
152,042.02 35,023.17 117,018.85
2,379,341.40 392,726.21 392,916.79 2,379,150.82
7,118,888.00 1,681,467.00 8,800,355.00
36,051,074.77 2,218,161.65 1,837,785.74 36,431,450.68
39,855.53 3,022.82 9,371.86 33,506.49
$ 39,855.53 3,022.82 9,371.86 33,506.49

More detailed information about the District’s long-term debt is presented in the Notes to the Financial

Statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Hamilton Township School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many years. In
addition, the School District's system for financial planning, budgeting, and internal financial controls
are well regarded. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet the

challenges of the future.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to present users (residents, receiving districts, and creditors) with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability. If you have
questions about the report or need additional financial information, contact the District’'s business
administrator at 1876 Dr. Dennis Foreman Drive, Mays Landing, New Jersey 08330.

22



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



DISTRICT - WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net

Internal balances

Due from other governments
Inventory

Right to use leased assets

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress
Capital assets, net
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions
Loss on Refunding Bonds
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Other liabilities

Payable to state government

Unearned revenue

Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Net Pension Liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Debt service

Capital projects

Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total net position

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 9,849,542.70 2,135,057.90 11,984,600.60
5,300,246.56 5,300,246.56
462,953.87 462,953.87
21,754.99 (21,754.99) -
1,313,999.13 134,155.14 1,448,154.27
23,221.77 23,221.77
204,926.01 204,926.01
1,423,600.00 1,423,600.00
16,845,497.19 16,845,497.19
46,641,411.31 23,222.87 46,664,634.18
82,063,931.76 2,293,902.69 84,357,834.45
707,598.00 - 707,598.00
19,838.22 19,838.22
727,436.22 - 727,436.22
822,407.07 1,248.94 823,656.01
485,389.38 485,389.38
5,167.49 5,167.49
1,623,599.49 13,440.98 1,637,040.47
1,594,231.46 - 1,594,231.46
26,036,864.22 33,506.49 26,070,370.71
8,800,355.00 8,800,355.00
39,368,014.11 48,196.41 39,416,210.52
2,051,131.00 - 2,051,131.00
39,980,508.50 23,222.87 40,003,731.37
1.36 1.36
1,560,265.96 1,560,265.96
13,600,626.14 13,600,626.14
(13,769,179.09) 2,222,483.41 (11,546,695.68)
$ 41,372,222.87 2,245,706.28 43,617,929.15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Receivables from other governments
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable
Unemployment compensation claims payable
Due to other governments
Interfund payable
Unearned revenue
Due to Grantor
Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:
Excess Surplus
Excess Surplus - Designated for
Subsequent Year's Expenditures
Unemployment Compensation
Capital Projects
Debt Service Fund
Student Activities
Scholarships
Committed for:
Capital Reserve Fund
Maintenance Reserve Fund
Designated for subsequent year's
expenditures
Assigned to:
Encumbrances
Unreserved, reported in:
General fund
Special revenue fund
Total Fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 30, 2023

Exhibit B-1

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
6,619,962.23 1,289,667.57 1,939,911.54 1.36 9,849,542.70
5,300,246.56 5,300,246.56
462,504.87 449.00 462,953.87
21,754.99 21,754.99
764,406.62 549,592.51 1,313,999.13
13,168,875.27 1,839,709.08 1,939,911.54 1.36 16,948,497.25
392,939.89 354,369.18 75,098.00 822,407.07
9,807.71 9,807.71
83,538.96 83,538.96
5,167.49 5,167.49
1,623,599.49 1,623,599.49
486,286.56 1,983,136.16 75,098.00 - 2,544,520.72
4,037,123.33 4,037,123.33
3,959,427.77 3,959,427.77
405,759.48 405,759.48
1,560,265.96 1,560,265.96
1.36 1.36
151,115.22 151,115.22
1,367.70 1,367.70
2,023,922.41 2,023,922.41
3,021,910.00 3,021,910.00
0.23 0.23
- 304,547.58 304,547.58
(765,554.51) (765,554.51)
(295,910.00) (295,910.00)
12,682,588.71 (143,427.08) 1,864,813.54 1.36 14,403,976.53
13,168,875.27 1,839,709.08 1,939,911.54 1.36
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 64,910,508.50

Pension Liabilities Net of Deferred Outflows & Inflows

Deferred amounts on refunding bonds are reported in
governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost is amortized over the
life of the bonds.

2019 Refunding Bond issue

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported
in the funds.

Bond payable
Capital lease
Premium on Bond Issue
Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(10,143,888.00)

19,838.22

(24,930,000.00)

(117,018.85)
(392,042.71)

(2,379,150.82)

41,372,222.87
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REVENUES

Local tax levy

Tuition Charges

Use of Facilities

Interest

Other Restricted Miscellaneous Revenues
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues
Local sources

State sources

Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other special instruction
Other instruction

Support services and undistributed costs:

Tuition
Student & instruction related services
School administrative services
Other administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated Benefits
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, July 1

Fund balance—June 30

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, And Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$  20,953,958.00 1,160,048.00 22,114,006.00
445,695.11 445,695.11
280,232.84 280,232.84
190.95 190.95
265,499.25 265,499.25
81,677.29 81,677.29
39,971,808.40 3,919,855.94 763,830.00 44,655,494.34
198,303.24 2,989,607.95 3,187,911.19
62,115,687.79 6,991,141.18 - 1,923,878.00 71,030,706.97
12,676,440.83 3,345,836.64 16,022,277.47
5,086,888.45 5,086,888.45
1,956,520.99 1,956,520.99
165,593.52 165,593.52
937,026.17 4,550.00 941,576.17
5,679,875.82 3,659,139.18 9,339,015.00
1,635,075.14 1,635,075.14
1,608,844.10 1,608,844.10
4,037,602.62 4,037,602.62
4,418,665.09 4,418,665.09
19,888,338.98 19,888,338.98
1,190,000.00 1,190,000.00
749,612.50 749,612.50
299,743.64 775,134.42 75,098.00 1,149,976.06
58,390,615.35 7,784,660.24 75,098.00 1,939,612.50 68,189,986.09
3,725,072.44 (793,519.06) (75,098.00) (15,734.50) 2,840,720.88
- 794,358.00 - 794,358.00
(794,358.00) - (794,358.00)

(794,358.00) 794,358.00 - - -
2,930,714.44 838.94 (75,098.00) (15,734.50) 2,840,720.88
9,751,874.27 (144,266.02) 1,939,911.54 15,735.86 11,563,255.65
$  12,682,588.71 (143,427.08) 1,864,813.54 1.36 14,403,976.53

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds (from B-2) $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense
Assets charged to expense
Iltems charged to capital outlay but not capitalized
Capital outlays

In the statement of activities, only the loss on disposal of capital assets is reported, whereas in the
governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale (if any) increases financial resources. Thus, the
change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the book value of the assets disposed.

Repayment of long term debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accrued
interest is an addition in the reconciliation. (+)

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures.
However in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned
net of of employee contributions is reported as pension expense.

District pension contributions - PERS
Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are
measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-);when the paid amount
exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).
Compensated absences
Amortization of premium on the issuance of bonds
Amortization of gain (loss) on 2019 refunding bond issue
Change in net position of governmental activities $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Exhibit B-3

2,840,720.88

(2,476,141.23)

100,626.75
(158,059.32)
1,039,374.06
(1,494,199.74)
1,335,000.00
19,381.78
735,365.00
878,944.00
1,614,309.00
191.08
(5,937.48)
3502317
4,344 48869
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Interfund receivable
Inventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Interfund payable
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2023

Exhibit B-4

Food Latchkey Community
Service Program Education Total
$ 1,509,656.17 225,250.15 400,151.58 2,135,057.90
128,250.14 5,405.00 500.00 134,155.14
5,023.06 5,023.06
23,221.77 23,221.77
1,666,151.14 230,655.15 400,651.58 2,297,457.87
385,256.14 2,352.72 38,681.92 426,290.78
(363,500.71) (2,352.72) (37,214.48) (403,067.91)
21,755.43 - 1,467.44 23,222.87
1,687,906.57 230,655.15 402,119.02 2,320,680.74
9,863.24 5,023.06 11,891.75 26,778.05
- 1,248.94 - 1,248.94
13,440.98 - 13,440.98
23,304.22 6,272.00 11,891.75 41,467.97
33,506.49 33,506.49
33,506.49 - - 33,506.49
56,810.71 6,272.00 11,891.75 74,974.46
21,755.43 - 1,467.44 23,222.87
1,609,340.43 224,383.15 388,759.83 2,222,483.41
$ 1,631,095.86 224,383.15 390,227.27 2,245,706.28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Exhibit B-5

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Food Latchkey Community
Service Program Education Total
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs $ 315,952.60 315,952.60
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs 69,331.35 69,331.35
Special functions 31,233.21 31,233.21
Miscellaneous 3,415.00 3,415.00
Community services activities 29,941.67 287,188.25 373,094.10 690,224.02
Total operating revenues 449,873.83 287,188.25 373,094.10 1,110,156.18
Operating expenses:
Cost of sales-reimbursable programs 169,024.76 169,024.76
Cost of sales-non-reimbursable programs 550,957.28 550,957.28
Salaries 560,510.57 270,350.73 121,150.91 952,012.21
Employee benefits 178,181.77 41,734.64 10,130.40 230,046.81
General supplies & materials 90,570.29 38,515.08 31,608.17 160,693.54
Other expenses 289,281.68 7,207.10 17,236.80 313,725.58
Depreciation 2,535.49 1,476.24 4,011.73
Total Operating Expenses 1,841,061.84 357,807.55 181,602.52 2,380,471.91
Operating (loss) (1,391,188.01) (70,619.30) 191,491.58 (1,270,315.73)
Nonoperating revenues:
State sources:
State school lunch program 19,230.68 19,230.68
Reduced breakfast 4,912.80 4,912.80
Reduced lunch 12,944.00 12,944.00
Breakfast after the bell 13,127.10 13,127.10
Summer feeding program 200.90 200.90
Federal sources: -
National school lunch program 912,864.67 912,864.67
National school breakfast program 276,355.60 276,355.60
HFFKA Performance Based 23,025.04 23,025.04
Summer Food Service Program:

National school lunch program 6,139.41 6,139.41
Summer Food Service program Administrative Fee 626.75 626.75
Supply Chain Assistance Funding 139,984.44 139,984.44
Local Food for Schools Co-op 2,397.38 2,397.38
P-EBT Administrative Costs 3,256.00 3,256.00
Food distribution program 107,972.60 107,972.60

Interest and investment revenue 12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 16,253.85
Total nonoperating revenues 1,535,301.26 1,908.93 2,081.03 1,539,291.22
(Loss) before contributions & transfers 144,113.25 (68,710.37) 193,572.61 268,975.49

Other financing sources:
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (2,600.00) - - (2,600.00)
Change in net position 141,513.25 (68,710.37) 193,572.61 266,375.49
Total net position—beginning 1,489,582.61 293,093.52 196,654.66 1,979,330.79
Total net position—ending $ 1,631,095.86 224,383.15 390,227.27 2,245,706.28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Payments to cost of sales
Net cash provided/(used) for operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources
Payments from other funds
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net cash (used for) capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances—beginning of year
Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities
Depreciation and net amortization
Federal commodities
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase) in other receivables
(Decrease) in interfund payable
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in deferred revenue
(Decrease) in compensated absences
Total adjustments
Net cash provided/(used) for operating activities

Exhibit B-6

Food Latchkey Community
Service Program Education Total
$ 416,563.07 285,714.13 372,594.10 1,074,871.30
(560,510.57) (276,928.04) (121,150.91) (958,589.52)
(184,530.81) (41,734.64) (10,130.40) (236,395.85)
(379,851.97) (44,473.24) (48,844.97) (473,170.18)
(618,404.83) - - (618,404.83)
(1,326,735.11) (77,421.79) 192,467.82 (1,211,689.08)
50,462.98 50,462.98
1,484,668.39 1,484,668.39
(895.69) - 10,015.66 9,119.97
1,534,235.68 - 10,015.66 1,544,251.34
(2,669.38) - (2,669.38)
(2,600.00) (2,600.00)
(5,269.38) - - (5,269.38)
12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 16,253.85
12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 16,253.85
214,495.08 (75,512.86) 204,564.51 343,546.73
1,295,161.09 300,763.01 195,587.07 1,791,511.17
1,509,656.17 225,250.15 400,151.58 2,135,057.90
(1,391,188.01) (70,619.30) 191,491.58 (1,270,315.73)
2,535.49 1,476.24 4,011.73
107,972.60 107,972.60
(6,407.15) (6,407.15)
(33,310.76) (1,474.12) (500.00) (35,284.88)
(2,672.95) (6,577.31) - (9,250.26)
1,248.94 1,248.94
2,684.71 - 2,684.71
(6,349.04) (6,349.04)
64,452.90 (6,802.49) 976.24 58,626.65
$ (1,326,735.11) (77,421.79) 192,467.82 (1,211,689.08)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Hamilton Township School District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to
function as an educational institution. The Board consists of elected officials and is responsible for the
fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of the Hamilton Township School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. In its
accounting and financial reporting, the District follows the pronouncements of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the District are discussed below.

A. REPORTING ENTITY:

The Hamilton Township School District is a Type |l district located in the County of Atlantic, State of New
Jersey. As a Type |l District, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education.
The board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the district is to
educate students in grades K-8. The Hamilton Township School District had an enrollment at June 30,
2023 and 2022 of 2,892 and 2,836 students, respectively.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

YVVVVYVY

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENTS:

The District’'s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the District's major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District’'s
general and special revenue activities are classified as governmental activities. The District's food
service, Kid’s Corner (latchkey), and Community Education programs are classified as business-type
activities. Fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

In the governmental-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The District’'s net position are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net
of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The District first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the District's

functions and business-type activities (food service, latchkey, and community education). The functions
are also supported by general government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain intergovernmental
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revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related
program revenues, operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the
function (regular instruction, student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity.
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the
capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property
taxes, tuition, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense, compensated absences,
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the
District's net assets resulting from the current year’s activities. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide statements.

C. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are
reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASBS
No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements. The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey School
Districts must report all governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition
of a major fund. However, the criteria are applied to proprietary funds.

The following fund types are used by the District:
1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District.

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The District's
Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund, Payroll Agency, and Net Payroll accounts are also
accounted for in the General Fund.

b. Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for a specific purpose. The special revenue fund is specifically
used to account for state and federal grant monies that have been allocated to the District. The
District’'s Student Activities and Scholarship Funds are also accounted for in the Special Revenue
Fund.

c. Capital projects funds are used to account for all financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The financial resources are derived from
temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically authorized by the voters as a separate
question on the ballot either during the annual election or at a special election.
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d. Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment
of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and
improvement programs.

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund balance:

» Non-spendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not spendable
in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

» Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of other
governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

» Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed fund
balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the District's
highest level of decision-making authority. Commitments may be modified or rescinded only
through resolutions approved by the Board of Education.

» Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do not
meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the District's policy, amounts
may be assigned by the Business Administrator.

» Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted,
committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The District reports all
amounts that meet the unrestricted General Fund Balance Policy described below as unassigned:

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet. When an
expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which
committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers amounts to have
been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of
the District:

a. Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely
secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes
fees and charges based on a pricing policy designated to recover similar costs.

Food Services Fund — provides for the operation of food services in all
schools within the school district.

Kids Corner Program — accounts for the operation of the before and after
school program administered at the Hess Complex.

Community Education — accounts for the operation of the community
education program of the District.

33



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(CONTINUED)

3. Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are
not available to support District programs. The reporting focuses are on net position and changes in net
position, and are reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension,
private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third
party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.) and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide
statements.

D. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made
regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual:

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e.,
both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days
after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

E. FINANCIAL STATEMENT AMOUNTS

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.

The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan
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institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental units.

2. Investments:

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value, (quoted market
price or the best available estimate). Interest earned in the Capital Projects Fund is recognized in the
District’'s General Fund.

3. Inventories:

Inventories in the general fund consist of expendable supplies held for the District’s use and are carried at
cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the enterprise fund are valued at cost, which
approximates market, using the first-in, first—out method. As of June 30, 2023, the District did not have
inventory in the general fund and had the following inventory in the enterprise fund.

Food $ 14,555.97
Supplies 8,665.80
$ 23,221.77

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required by the Single Audit Law
of 1996) is the difference between market value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and
has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements. The value of
commodities included in the food service inventory on June 30, 2023 is $4,064.96.

4. Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 years

Infrastructure assets include roads, parking lots, underground pipe, etc. All infrastructure assets are
reported in the financial statements and are being depreciated over their useful lives.

5. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. Property taxes are susceptible to accrual and
under New Jersey State Statutes a municipality is required to remit to its school district the entire balance
of taxes in the amount voted upon or certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the
entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or
current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider
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recognizes liabilities and expenses and recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the
recipient. Program revenues, including tuition revenue, are reported as reductions to expenses in the
Statement of Activities.

6. Expenditures:

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in
the period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

7. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its
employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that
relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District
and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such
events take place.

In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as an expenditure and fund liability in the fund that
will pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is reported
in the District-wide Financial Statements as a Governmental Activity.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability of
the fund that will pay for them.

8. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements. All funds internal activity is eliminated when
carried to the Government-wide statements.

9. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and, as long as the
District budget is within State mandated CAPs, there is no public vote on the budget. If the budget
exceeds State mandated CAPs, the voters have an opportunity to approve or reject the budget at the
regular election held in November. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting,
except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established
at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level
of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2 (g).
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year
and are subject to two-thirds majority vote by the School Board and under certain circumstances require
approval by the Executive County Superintendent of Schools.
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Significant transfers approved by the Board of Education during the fiscal year were as follows:

Regular Programs — Instruction

Salaries of Teachers Grades 6-8 $ (421,427.27)
Special Education — Instruction:

Multiple Disabilities -

Salaries of Teachers 684,345.00
Resource Room/Resource Center -
Salaries of Teachers (601,384.00)

Undistributed Expenses — Other Support Services -
Students — Extra Services:
Salaries 348,514.21
Undistributed Expenses — Student Transportation
Contracted Services -

Special Education Students — Joint Agreements 686,222.00
Unallocated Benefits:
Health Benefits (816,546.00)

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally
mandated revenue recognition of one or more June state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and
the special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAARP basis financial reports.

10. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

11. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal year 2022/23 were based on rates established by the receiving district.
These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.

12. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those results.

13. Allocation of Costs

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to various
programs based on the final budgetary appropriations by program.
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14. Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) and
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the TPAF and PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

F. RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 99,
“Omnibus 2022”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, and all
reporting periods thereafter, may have an effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 100,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62)”. This
statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, may have an effect on the
District’s financial reporting.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 101,
“Compensated Absences”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2023, may have an effect on the District’s financial reporting.

NOTE 2: INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following investments in the Private Purpose Scholarship Fund.

Maturity Term Interest Rate Fair Value
Certificate of Deposit 10/14/2023 12 Months 0.50% $1,367.70

Upon maturity in October 2023, the District renewed the certificate for an additional 12 month term at an
interest rate of 0.50% per annum.

In addition, as of June 30, 2023 the District had $21.99 on deposit with New Jersey ARM.

Interest Rate Risk. The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
However, New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk. New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits District investments to those specified in the Statutes.
The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United States of America or of the District or the local
units in which the District is located; obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days; government
money market mutual funds; the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government
investment pools; or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer.

NOTE 3: CASH

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The District’s policy is based on New Jersey Statutes
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requiring cash be deposited only in New Jersey based banking institutions that participate in the New
Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act (GUDPA) or in qualified investments established in New
Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 that are treated as cash equivalents. As of June 30, 2023, $814,655.61 of the
District’s bank balance of $19,011,300.13 was exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in Progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land Improvements
Buildings and building improvements
Equipment and Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated at
historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Buildings and improvements
Equipment and Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated,

net of accumulated depreciation

Governmental activity capital assets, net  $

Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:

Food Service Equipment $
Less accumulated depreciation
Enterprise Fund capital assets, net $

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions/Adj. Balance
1,423,600.00 1,423,600.00

16,678,252.19 167,245.00 16,845,497.19

18,101,852.19 167,245.00 18,269,097.19
4,064,551.45 241,919.60 4,306,471.05
82,556,592.41 173,628.00 82,730,220.41
2,984,385.99 399,148.89 3,383,534.88
89,605,529.85 814,696.49 90,420,226.34

(561,195.04)
(38,921,693.03)
(1,819,785.73)

(216,150.33)
(1,895,131.31)
(364,859.59)

(777,345.37)

(40,816,824.34)

(2,184,645.32)

(41,302,673.80)

(2,476,141.23)

(43,778,815.03)

48,302,856.05

(1,661,444.74)

46,641,411.31

66,404,708.24

(1,494,199.74)

64,910,508.50

423,621.40 2,669.38 426,290.78
(399,056.18) (4,011.73) (403,067.91)
24,565.22 (1,342.35) 23,222.87

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Regular Instruction $ 922,374.62
Special Instruction 374,421.65
Other Special Instruction 142,229.67
Other Instruction 13,183.44
Student & Instruction Related Services 453,000.26
Gen Administration Services 121,194.67
School Administration Services 127,466.10
Plant Operations 322,270.82

$ 2,476,141.23

NOTE 5: CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Hamilton Township Board of Education for the
accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital
reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual
budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved
Long-Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end (June 1 to June 30) of any unanticipated
revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate
additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate
proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to NJSA 19:60-2. Pursuant to NJAC 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time
exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2022 $ 23,731.46
Deposits:

Resolution adopted 6/8/2023 2,000,000.00

Interest 190.95

2,023,922.41

Withdrawals:

Budgeted Withdrawal -
Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $ 2,023,922.41

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 6: MAINTENANCE RESERVE FUND

New Jersey Administrative Code 6A:23A-14.2 permits school districts to establish a maintenance reserve
account for the required maintenance of the District's facilities, in accordance with the Commissioner
approved plan. The District can only increase the balance in this reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

Beginning balance, July 1, 2022
Additions:

$ 2,350,000.00

Resolution Approved 6/28/2023 244,692.00

Interest Earned via Budget 20,345.00

Budgeted Increase 406,873.00
Deductions:

Budgeted Withdrawal -

Ending balance, June 30, 2023 $ 3,021,910.00
NOTE 7: GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Amounts Due

Balance Issues or Payments or Balance Within
June 30, 2022 Additions Expenditures June 30, 2023 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 2,379,341.40 392,726.21 392,916.79 2,379,150.82 86,700.82
Lease Liability 135,803.35 143,968.44 74,845.78 204,926.01 89,758.08
Amorti of Bond Premium 152,042.02 35,023.17 117,018.85 37,772.58
Bonds Payable 26,265,000.00 1,335,000.00 24,930,000.00 1,380,000.00
Net Pension Liability 7,118,888.00 1,681,467.00 8,800,355.00 -
$ 36,051,074.77 2,218,161.65 1,837,785.74 36,431,450.68 1,594,231.48
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 39,855.53 3,022.82 9,371.86 33,506.49 -

A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through referendums. All

bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness.

Board are general obligation bonds.

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2023 consisted of the following:

Bonds issued by the

$21,973,000 School Improvement Bonds dated December 4, 2018 due in annual installments through

July 15, 2038.

Interest at rates ranging from 3.0% to 4.0% is due semi-annually on the 15" day of
January and July, commencing on July 15, 2019.

Bonds maturing on or after July 15, 2029, are subject
to redemption at the option of the Board prior to maturity, in whole or in part, on any date on or after July
15, 2028. The balance remaining as of June 30, 2023 was $18,695,000.00.
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$5,665,000 School Energy Savings Obligation Refunding Bonds (ESIP) dated March 20, 2019 due in
annual installments through March 15, 2040. Interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.00% is due semi-
annually on the 15" day of March and September, commencing on September 15, 2019. Bonds maturing
on or after March 15, 2030 are subject to redemption at the option of the Board prior to maturity, in whole
or in part, on any date on or after March 15, 2039. The balance remaining as of June 30, 2023 was
$4,965,000.00.

$2,295,000 Refunding School Bonds, Series 2019 dated November 5, 2019 payable in annual
installments through 2/1/2025. Interest is paid semiannually at 4.00% per annum. These bonds are not
subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities. These bonds wee issued to advance refund the
callable portion of the School Bonds, Series 2010 maturing on or after 2/1/2021 in the total principal
amount of $2,394,000. The total net present value savings on the issue is $112,460.79, or 4.698%. The
balance remaining on the issue as of June 30, 2023 was $1,270,000.00.

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 1,380,000.00 917,337.50 2,297,337.50
2025 1,435,000.00 868,712.50 2,303,712.50
2026 1,475,000.00 817,587.50 2,292,587.50
2027 1,165,000.00 764,162.50 1,929,162.50
2028 1,215,000.00 724,787.50 1,939,787.50
2029-2033 7,010,000.00 2,957,781.25 9,967,781.25
2034-2038 8,775,000.00 1,439,200.00 10,214,200.00
2039-2040 2,475,000.00 85,800.00 2,560,800.00

$ _24,930,000.00

8,575,368.75

33,505,368.75

B. Lease Liability

The District has commitments to lease certain office equipment under operating leases that expire in
fiscal year 2028. Total operating lease payments made during the year ended June 30, 2023 were
$74,845.78. Monthly payments range from $282.89 to $2,143.00.

Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Fiscal Year End

June 30 Payment
2024 $ 89,758.08
2025 65,689.47
2026 37,436.98
2027 6,568.08
2028 5,473.40

$ 204,926.01

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 8: PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees’ Retirement System or
the Teacher’s Pension and Annuity Fund cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans
which have been established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all
obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate.
The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO
Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or the reports can be accessed on the internet at:
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/publications/21fr/NJFRFY2021Complete.pdf.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January, 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified
members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan
with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by
the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January, 1955 under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified members.
The Public Employees’ Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Membership is
mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State or any county, municipality, school district
or public agency provided the employee is not required to be a member of another State-administered
retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2008 under the
provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (NJSA 43:15C-1 et seq). The DCRP is a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible members,
and their beneficiaries with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with life
insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by NJSA 43:15C-1 et
seq.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and
N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan member
and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS
provide for employee contributions of 7.5% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers
are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF
rate is 35.24% and the PERS rate is 7.5% of covered payroll. The School District’'s contributions to TPAF
for the years ending June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, were $7,926,418.00, $8,081,337.00, and
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$5,835,959.00, respectively, and paid by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the board, equal to the
required contributions for each year. The School District's contributions to PERS for the years ending
June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021, were $735,365.00, $703,756.00, and $647,536.00 respectively, equal to
the required contributions for each year.

The Board’s total payroll for the years ended June 30, 2023, 2022, and 2021, was $32,056,814.30,
$30,963,890.94, and 29,468,721.58; covered payroll was $22,803,809.00, $22,259,894.00 and
$21,353,877.00 for TPAF; and $4,621,376.00, $4,344,459.00 and $4,255,625.00 for PERS.

Significant Leqislation

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 made various changes to the manner in which the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the Teacher’'s Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) operate
and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

Chapter 78’s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

¢ New members of the PERS and TPAF hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members) will need
30 years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of ¥4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65.

e The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the systems is increased from age 63 to 65
for Tier 5 members.

¢ Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from 5.5% of
annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years; PFRS active
member rate increase from 8.5% to 10%. For fiscal year 2013, the member contribution rates
increased in October 2012. The phase-in of the additional incremental member contribution rates
for PERS members will take place in July of each subsequent fiscal year.

e The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and
future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

e New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit
coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected
level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period
for those employed prior to Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to be
at least 1.5% of salary.

e In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’
unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-administered
retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the definition of
compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-forfeitable right to a pension, and employer
contributions to the retirement systems.

Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of PERS from the
amount of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned the benefit
multiplier for new members of PERS and TPAF to 1/60%" from 1/55%, and it provided that new members of
PERS and TPAF have the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual compensation for
the last five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New members of PERS and TPAF
will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer. Pension service credit will be
earned for the highest paid position only. The law also requires the State to make its full pension
contribution, defined a 1/7t" of the required amount, beginning in fiscal years 2012.
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Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability retirement
for new members of the PERS with disability insurance coverage similar to that provided by the State to
individuals enrolled in the State’s Defined Contribution Retirement Program.

Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 implemented certain recommendations contained in the December 1, 2006 report
of the Joint Legislative Committee on Public Employee Benefits Reform; established a DCRP for elected
and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007; the new pension loan interest rate became 4.69%
per year, and an $8.00 processing fee per loan was charged, effective January 1, 2008. The legislation
also removed language from existing law that permits the State Treasurer to reduce employer pension
contributions needed to fund the Funds and Systems when excess assets are available.

NOTE 9: PENSION LIABILITIES — PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

In 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB statement 68. This statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. This statement changes the method of reporting
the District’s pension liabilities. The following information describes the District's proportionate share of
the statewide pension system'’s liabilities and expenses.

The following represents the District’'s pension liabilities as June 30, 2022:
Public Employees’ Retirement System

The District has a liability of $8,800,355 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net
pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021 that was rolled forward to
June 30, 2022. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District's proportion is
0.05831379830%, which is a decrease of 2.96% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the District recognized negative pension expense of $878,944.

At December 31, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected & actual experience $ 63,517 $ (56,013)
Changes of assumptions 27,266 (1,317,762)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 364,239 -
Changes in proportion 252,576 (677,356)
Total $ 707,598 $ (2,051,131)

Amounts that would be reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions would be recognized in pension expense as follows:

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Year ended
June 30,
2024 $ (1,228,062)
2025 (452,289)
2026 (31,779)
2027 371,485
2028 (2,888)
Total $ (1,343,533)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%
Salary increases: 2.75% — 6.55% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disable retirees were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on generational
basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table:

46



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(CONTINUED)

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
US equity 27.00% 8.12%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 13.50% 8.38%
Emerging markets equity 5.50% 10.33%
Private equity 13.00% 11.80%
Real estate 8.00% 11.19%
Real assets 3.00% 7.60%
High yield 4.00% 4.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 8.10%
Investment grade credit 7.00% 3.38%
Cash equivalents 4.00% 1.75%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 1.75%
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 4.91%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2022. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of
actuarially determined contributions for local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Municipality's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 10,553,430 $ 8,800,355 $ 7,310,076

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PERS financial report.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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NOTE 10 — PENSION LIABILITIES - TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

At June 30, 2022, the District liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability which is
considered a Special Funding Situation with the State of New Jersey is reported below.

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State
of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is
treated as a non-employer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute
directly to the plan, there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial
statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the non-employer contributing entities' total
proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. In
addition, each local participating employer must recognize pension expense associated with the employer
as well as revenue in an amount equal to the non-employer contributing entities' total proportionate share
of the collective pension expense associated with the local participating employer.

The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related
State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as
follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ -

State's proportionate share of the net position liability
associated with the District 99,875,010.00

Total $ 99,875,010.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total pension liability to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’'s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2022, the District’s proportion was 0.00%, which was no change from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized pension expense of $2,687,916 and revenue of
$2,687,916 for support provided by the State.

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all period included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%
Salary increases 2.75% - 5.65% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return 7.00%
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Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee
mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Medan Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7%
adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety
Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females,
and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement
is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return.
US Equity 27.00% 8.12%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50% 8.38%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.33%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.80%
Real Estate 8.00% 11.19%
Real Assets 3.00% 7.60%
High Yield 2.00% 4.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 8.10%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 3.38%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 1.75%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.75%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.91%

Discount rate.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2022. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.0% as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point
higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ - $ - $ -
State's proportionate share of the

net position liability associated

with the District $ 117,105,571.61 $ 99,875,010.00 $ 85,360,426.93

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
TPAF financial report.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the local group at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 5,004,259,312
Deferred inflows of resources 19,682,774,794
Net pension liability 51,676,587,303

Collective pension expense for the plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2022 is
$1,390,761,344.

NOTE 11 — POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
General Information about the OPEB Plan
State Health Benefit State Retired Employees Plan:

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obligations in Fiscal Year 2022 the State funded
the various defined benefit pension systems at 108 percent of the full actuarially determined contributions.
Employer contributions to the pension plans are calculated per the requirements of the governing State
statutes using generally accepted actuarial procedures and practices. The actuarial funding method used
to determine the State’s contribution is a matter of State law. Any change to the funding method requires
the approval of the State Legislature and the Governor. The amount the State actually contributes to the
pension plans may differ from the actuarially determined contributions of the pension plans because the
State’s contribution to the pension plans is subject to the appropriation of the State Legislature and
actions by the Governor. GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,
requires participating employers to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability. Under the new statement, the calculation of the pension liability was changed to a more
conservative methodology and each employer was allocated a proportional share of the pension plans’
net pension liability. The State’s share of the net pension liability, based on a measurement date of June
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30, 2021, which is required to be reported on the financial statements, is $75.1 billion. The Fiscal Year
2023 projected aggregate State contribution to the pension plans of $6.8 billion represents 104 percent of
the actuarially determined contributions. The State provides post-retirement medical (PRM) benefits for
certain State and other retired employees meeting the service credit eligibility requirements. In Fiscal
Year 2022, the State paid PRM benefits for 161,238 State and local retirees. The State funds post-
retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the State does not pre-fund, or
otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM expenses that the State may incur
in future years. For Fiscal Year 2022, the State contributed $1.9 billion to pay for “pay-as-you-go” PRM
benefit costs incurred by covered populations, a slight increase from $1.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2021. The
State has appropriated $2.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2023 as the State’s contribution to fund increases in
prescription drugs and medical claims costs. In accordance with the provisions of GASBE Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is
required to quantify and disclose its obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired
plan members. This new standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for
Fiscal Year 2018. The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language
names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2022 State OPEB liability to
provide these benefits is $88.9 billion, a decrease of $12.7 billion, or 12.5 percent, from the $101.6 billion
liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2021. Additional information on Pensions and OPEB can be accessed on
the Division of Pensions & Benefits Financial Reports webpage:
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtmi.

Total OPEB Liability

The State, a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No.
75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability
on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note information is reported at
the State’s level and is not specific to the board of education/board of trustees. Note that actual numbers
will be published in June 30, 2023 111-3.8 the NJ State ACFR on the Office of Management and Budget's
Financial Publications webpage: NJ OMB - Financial Publications

Actuarial assumptions and other imputes. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022, actuarial
valuation reported by the State in the State’s most recently issued ACFR was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. The actuarial
assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled
in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to
all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary Increases

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
2.75% t0 4.25% 2.75% to 6.55% 3.25% to 16.25%
based on service years based on service years based on service years
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Mortality Rates

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General”
(PERS), and “Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality
rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Disability
mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General’ classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021 for
current disabled retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the Pub-2020 “Safety” (PFRS),
“General” (PERS), and “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of the TPAF,
PERS, and PFRS experience studies for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.25% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term
trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO, the trend is initially -1.99% in fiscal year
2023, increasing to 13.44% in fiscal year 2026, and decreases to 4.5% in fiscal year 2033. For HMO the
trend is initially -3.54% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 15.19% in fiscal year 2026, and decreases to
4.5% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 8.00% and decreases to a
4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement, the trend rate is
5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.54%. This represents the municipal
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond
Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey

Balance at 6/30/22 (Based on 6/30/2021 measurement date) $ 60,007,650,970.00

Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,770,618,025.00
Interest 1,342,187,139.00
Changes in Benefit Terms -
Differences between Expected & Actual Experiences 1,399,200,736.00
Changes in assumptions or other inputs (13,586,368,097.00)
Contributions: Member 42,650,252.00
Benefit payments (1,329,476,059.00)
Net changes (9,361,188,004.00)

Balance at 6/30/23 (Based on 6/30/2022 measurement date) $ 50,646,462,966.00
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability as of June 20, 2022, respectively, calculated using a
discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.54%) (3.54%) (4.54%)

Total OPEB Liability = $  59,529,589,697.00 $  50,646,462,966.00 $  43,527,080,995.00

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022, calculated using the healthcare trend
rate as disclosed above as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability
(School Retirees) $  41,862,397,291.00 $  50,646,462,966.00 $ 62,184,866,635.00

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $1,704,296.00
determined by the State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined OPEB plan that
is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75 and in which there is
a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB 75, the board of education’s proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is
zero, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2022, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employees’ OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 9,042,402,619.00 $ (15,462,950,679.00)
Changes in assumptions 8,765,620,577.00 (17,237,289,230.00)

$ 17,808,023,196.00 $ (32,700,239,909.00)
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired
school employees’ OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended

June 30,
2023 $ (2,517,151,602.00)
2024 (2,517,151,602.00)
2025 (2,517,151,602.00)
2026 (2,175,449,761.00)
2027 (1,243,951,140.00)

Thereafter (3,921,361,006.00)

$  (14,892,216,713.00)

(Contributions made after June 30 are reported as deferred outflow of resources but are not amortized in
the expense.)

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OPEB
financial report.

NOTE 12: LABOR CONTRACTS
As of June 30, 2023, the District’'s employees are organized in three collective bargaining units.

Bargaining Unit Employees Covered Expiration
All regularly employed certified and
support personnel, as defined in Article June 30, 2025
1 of the contract.

Hamilton Township Education
Association (HTEA)

All supervisors, coordinators and
directors, excluding the Superintendent,
Business Administrator, Principals,
Vice-Principals, Supervisor of
Curriculum/Instruction, Supervisor of June 30, 2025
Instruction-Special Education,
Supervisor of CST and Special
Education programs, and all non-
supervisory employees of the District.

Supervisors, Coordinators and
Directors Association

All administrative staff excluding the
Superintendent and Business June 30, 2026
Administrator

Hamilton Township
Administrator’'s Association

In addition to the above contracts, the Board of Education has entered into individual employment
agreements with the Superintendent and Business Administrator. The expiration of these contracts will
vary depending on the position.
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NOTE 13: DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan
administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable

Lincoln Investment Planning
Siracusa Benefits Program
ING

Vanguard

NOTE 14: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. sick leave) as directed by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences”. A
liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on a
specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the
rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District’s personnel
policies. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and is capped based on the various employee
contracts.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one
year should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in
more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those funds
as the benefits accrue to employees.

NOTE 15: LITIGATION

From time to time, the District is a defendant in legal proceedings relating to its operations as a school
district. In the best judgment of the District's management, there are no potential legal proceedings that
may have a material affect on the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 16: FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund (Exhibit B-1) — Of the $12,682,588.71 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2023,
$634,808.40 is reserved for encumbrances, but not reflected as assigned on the balance sheet since the
unassigned balance is negative; $7,996,551.10 is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with NJSA
18A:7F-7 ($3,959,427.77 of the total reserve for excess surplus has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2024); $405,759.48 has been reserve for
Unemployment Compensation; $2,023,922.41 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account;
$3,021,910.00 has been reserved in the Maintenance Reserve Account; $0.23 has been appropriated
and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2024; and a deficit of $(765,554.51) is
unreserved and undesignated, after adjusting for the encumbrance amount of $634,808.40.

Debt Service Fund — Of the Debt Service Fund fund balance at June 30, 2023, $1.36 is reserved in
accordance with NJSA 7F-41¢(2) and $0.00 is unreserved and undesignated.
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NOTE 17: CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

The designation for Reserved Fund Balance — Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund
balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if the District did not appropriate a required minimum amount as
budgeted fund balance in the subsequent years’ budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2023 is
$7,996,551.10, of which $3,959,427.77 has been included in the 2023-24 budget. The excess fund
balance at June 30, 2022 was $6,907,107.83.

NOTE 18: DEFICIT FUND BALANCE

The District has a deficit fund balance of $765,554.51 in the General Fund and $295,910.00 in the
Special Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2023 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual basis).
N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following
school budget year, districts must record the delayed one or more June state aid payments as revenue,
for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The bill provides legal authority for school
districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB
Statement No. 33 requires that recognition (revenue, expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry,
i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability. Since the State
is recording the June state aid payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district can not
recognize the June state aid payments (on the GAAP financial statements) until the year the State
records the payable. This amount was $2,616,439.50 in the General Fund and $295,910.00 in the
Special Revenue Fund. Due to the timing difference of recording the June state aid payments, the
General Fund balance deficit does not alone indicate that the district is facing financial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is
reported as a direct result from a delay in the June payments of state aid until the following fiscal year, is
not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The
deficit in unreserved, undesignated general fund balance of $765,554.51 is less than the last state aid
payments.

NOTE 19: ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The District receives support from federal government and from the state governments. A significant
reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, would have an effect on the District’'s programs and
activities.

NOTE 20: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance — The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability and surety bonds. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 the District did not incur claims in
excess of their coverage and the amount of coverage did not significantly decrease.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance — The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement Method”. Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts
due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's unemployment
compensation fund for the current and prior year:

56



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
(CONTINUED)

Fiscal Interest on Amount Ending

Year Contributions Investment Reimbursed Balance
2022-2023 % 119,393.02 3,094.45 122,487 .47 405,759.48
2021-2022 97,800.94 574.65 98,375.59 405,759.48
2020-2021 143,619.11 3,006.90 143,619.11 405,759.48

NOTE 21: INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

As of June 30, 2023, several interfunds remained on the various balance sheets of the Hamilton
Township Board of Education.

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 21,754.99
Food Service Fund 5,023.06 9,863.24
Latchkey Program 5,023.06
Community Education 11,891.75
$ 26,778.05 26,778.05

All interfunds are created as a result of timing differences between cash requirements in various funds
and the receipt of cash from funding agencies. It is anticipated that all interfunds will be liquidated during
the fiscal year.

NOTE 22: RIGHT TO USE ASSETS

The school district has recorded right to use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The right
to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease
liability, plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus ancillary
charges necessary to place the lease into service. The district has determined the other charges and
amortization to be immaterial to the government-wide financial statements and has elected to record the
Right of Use Assets at their remaining liability payments.

The district has recorded one right to use leased asset. The asset is right to use assets for leased copy
machines.. The related leases are discussed in Note 7.

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Copiers $ 135,803.35 143,968.44 74,845.78 204,926.01
Right to use assets, net $ 135,803.35 143,968.44 74,845.78 204,926.01

NOTE 23 — SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS

The District has entered into Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs)
involving:
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. Education Software
. Various desktop and server software subscriptions

The total of the District’'s subscription assets are recorded at a cost of $25,266.25, less accumulated
amortization of $0.00. This arrangement commences July 1, 2023.

The future subscription payments under SBITA agreements are as follows:

Subscriptions

Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 5,045.25 - 5,045.25
2025 5,045.25 - 5,045.25
2026 5,045.25 - 5,045.25
2027 5,045.25 - 5,045.25
2028 5,045.25 - 5,045.25
$ 25,226.25 - 25,226.25

NOTE 24: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other
The District has evaluated subsequent events through November 27, 2023, the date which the financial

statements were available to be issued and no items were noted for disclosure or adjustment.
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Note A - Explanation of Difference between Budgetary Inflows and
Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Exhibit C-3

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the budgetary
comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

Prior year
Current year

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary

purposes.

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements until the
subsequent year.

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP:
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies
are received for financial reporting purposes

Prior year
Current year

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds

General Special

Fund Revenue
$ 62,273,933.39 7,068,008.70
431,712.19
(508,579.71)
2,616,439.50 295,910.00
(2,774,685.10) (295,910.00)
62,115,687.79 6,991,141.18
58,390,615.35 7,861,527.76
431,712.19
(508,579.71)
$ 58,390,615.35 7,784,660.24

74



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



Required Supplemental Information
Part I11




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



‘pouad Jeak (| € 10} UOHEWLOJUI MOYS O} 89 ASYO Ag palinbal si 8|npayds siy] :8joN

SpJ0oal LIS ‘WaISAS Juswaunay ,seakojdw3 oljgnd uo Hodal g9 gSVYO :92inog

%2L 8y %80°2S %E6°LY %71 07 %01 8% %09°€S %1295 %ce 85 %€E 0L %16°29 Aunger
uoisuad [ej0} 8y} jo abejusosad
e se uonisod jau Ateonpy uejd
%8G°68C %¢.'89C %8G 9E %G1 €Sy %96°6€€ %y LLT %c0°85C %c8'9zC %98°€91 %EY 061 ll0JAed saA0jdwa-paianod sy jo
abejuaoiad e se (yosse) Aujgel| uoisuad
JaU 8y} Jo aleys ajeuoiodoid s ouisiq
00'252'9.€'y 00'568'20S ' 00'082'06€'Y 00'950'682'Y 00'799'vE€'y 00'L2L 19"y 00'08L'G.E'Y 00'529'S5¢'v 00'6SY'v7e'y 00'9.€'129'v lloJAed pasanod sjoulsiq
00'128'c.9'CL 00'¥SL'00L'CL 00'620'9L2'SL 00'S06'SEV'6L 00'982'9€L 'L 00'6.9'8€8'L L 00'269'88C'L L 00'2€.'259'6 00'888'8LL°L 00'55€°008'8 $ (1esse) Aniq
uoisuad jau ay} jo ajeuonodoud sjomsiq
%0t¥€280€990°0 %12€1829¥90°0 %C¥9¥€8.290°0 %1098€29590°0 %6¥¥SY0€€90°0 %1098921090°0 %1¥129059290°0 %666£261650°0 %.¥52260090°0 %€86.€1€850°0 (1esse) Aniq
uojsuad jau ay} jo uoiodoud s oulsIg
€102 102 G102 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 X404 2c0e

SJea) [edsiq ua] jse
waysAg Juawainay aakojdwz a1qnd
Ayliqer uoisuad 38N ay} jo aieyg ajeuoiiodoid S30LISIA Y3 JO BINPaYdS
1O111S1d TOOHJS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

75



‘pouad Jeak (| e 1o}y UOHEWIOMI MOYS O} 89 gSVO A palinbau s| 8inpayos siy| :8)oN

SPJ0281 JoLISIq ‘WeYSAS Juswalyay ,seakojdw oljgnd uo Hodal g9 gSYO :99In0g

%Cv L1 %E8 L1 %LTEL %S9V %8S°€l %0S°€lL %L6°CL %CC Sl %0291 %16°Gl lloJAed eafo|dwa-pasanod
Jo abejusoiad e se suonnqguuo)
00'252'9.€'v 00'G68'20S 't 00'08Z°06€'t 00'950'682' 00'799'vEE'y 00°122'19¢'y 00°08L'GLE'Y 00'629'sSe'y 00'6SY'vre'y 0092€°129'y $ llosAed sakojdwa-paianod sousIq
= = B = N N - - B - (ss@0xa) Aouaioyap UOHNQLIUOD
00'619'661% 00'68.'2€S 00'9G.'28S 8G'¥15'829 9€'G28'88G 9€'G28'88G 00971119 00'9€S°'2¥9 00'9G2'€0L 00'59¢'s€.L uoRNQLU0D paiinbas
AjIENJOB1UOD BUY) O} UOHE|S] Ul SUOHNQLIUOD
00'619'661% 00'68.°2€S 00'95.°28S 8515829 9€'G28'88S 9€'628'88S 00971119 00'9€S'2¥9 00'952'€0. 00'59¢'s€.L $ uoiNqu0d padinbai Ajjenjoesuod
€10e 102 G102 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 X014 2c0e

Sled) |edsid ua) jse
wiasAg Juswainay askojdwz aiqngd
suoinquUuoY J2H3SIQ J0 3|NPaYds
1I141S1d TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH
21

76



‘powiad Jeak Q| e o} uonewIojUl MOYS 0} 89 gSVO Aq paiinbal st 8inpayos syl 80N

SPJ00al JoLISIQ {WaISAS Juswauney seakojdwg olgnd uo Hodal g9 gSYS 19010

%6.L°€E %9 €E %182 %€ETT %L¥'GC %6¥°9¢ %S6°9C %09'vC %¢CS'GE %62°2¢ Auna
uojsuad |ejo} 8y jo abejusosad
e se uonyisod jau Aseionpy ueld
%00°0 %000 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %00°0 lloJAed 8akojdws-paIsnod sy jo
abejusoiad e se (Jasse) Ayjiqel uoisuad
18U aUy} Jo aueys dyeuoiuodold s ousIq
00°€0L'ELY L)L 00'952°16L'8L 00'0.9'vZ1L'61 00'6£8'0v6'81L 00°02z'6LE'02 00's8z'eee’ LT 00'€61'2€9'Le 002.8'ese'Le 00'¥68'652'2C 00'608'€08°2C $ lloJAed paiaAod sousIa
00'0££'229°L6 00'¥6¥'08%'96 00'8€Y'2G8°LLL 00'652'€62'9v1 00'2€9'952°9Z 1 0025265911 00°0L9'V6L LLL 00'9L€'c92'Gzl 00'LLY'SLL'Y6 00'0L0'G28'66 lejol
00'0££°229°L6 00'¥6%'081'96 00'8€Y'2LG8°LL1L 00'552'€62'9v1 00'2€9'952'9z 1 00'25¥'2659L1 00°0L9'V6L°LLL 00'9L€'292'G21 00'LLY'SLL'Y6 00'0L0'5.8'66 ouIsIA 8Y) Yum pajeroosse (jesse) Ajiqel
uoisuad jau ayy Jo aseys ajeuoniodold s )elS
- - - - - - - - - $ (1esse) Anng
uoisuad jau ayj jo sjeuoipodoud sjouisiq
%00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 %00°0 %000 %000 %00°0 %000 %00°0 (1esse) Ayiiqel
uoisuad jau ayj jo uorpodoud syousIq
€102 102 sioc 9102 1102 8102 6102 0202 Leoe 220e

siea A |eosiq ua] jse
pung A}inuuy pue uoisuad ,siaysea )
Ajiqer uoisuad 18N ayj Jo aseyg ajeuoiiodold s,1913SIQ dY3 JO 3INP3YIS
1J141S1d TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

77



%19 LV

%L

89¢

"a|e|leA. awo9aq Aay) se pajuasald aq |IImM SJeak [euonippy
"s1eak uaAas 10} d|ge|len. Aualind AJUO SI UOIEWIOJUI ‘ISASMOH

‘pouad Jeak (| e 10} UOHEWLIOUI MOYS 8] 0} G/ gSVO Aq palinbau sI 8|Npayos siyL 810N

SpJ0oal JoLsIq ‘wielboid spyeuag yjleaH a)els Aosiar MaN JO 9)els uo podal G2 gSYS :90Inos

%S1°L2€ %0L°9€S %¥6°G9%

%.G°88€ lloiAed
99/ojdwa-palanod sy jo abejusdiad e se
- JoIsIa 8y} ynm pajeroosse Ajjiq

g3d0 18U 8y} Jo aueys sjeuonodoud s,9)81S

00'608°888°201

00°€9€'8YL V6

00'C16'180°S8 00'69v'9VY'LEL $ 00'9.¥°'096°€Z) $

00'165'995°90} $ soueleg Buipug

00°0L¥'S0Y'9LL

(00°109'915°8)

00'608'888°201

(00 9rr'orL'el)

00°€9€'8Y.L'¥6 00Z16°180°G8 00'691°9vY'LEL

(00'157°999'6) 00'/55'79€'2S (00°€66'S8+'€1)

00'9.%'096°€Z ) soueleg Bujuuibeg
- JOUISIA BU} Yim pajeroosse (jesse) Ajjiger|
9340 18U a8y} jo areys sjeuoiodold s,91el1S

(00°688'c6€° 1) Ayiqer gedo [ejol ui ebueyd

(00°7£6'86%°2) (00°2£5°€€5°2) (192°119°7) (0£8'26€2) (770'€€5'2) (98€'26.°2) sjuswiAed Jyousg
0021026 00'€95'/8 0zv'LL Yrisk A 602'28 TrL'68 SuoINGUIUOD Jaquis iy
(00°6+6'925'7}) (00°6¥8°228°01) 8.5'89Z°L 1¥2'901'G2 962°22 (v¥1'285'82) suondwnssy ul sebueyd
- (00°069't726"2) (zv5'z8L'GL) ¥90'0€8'22 (926°298'02) Lze'ory's [ENJOY '8 Pajoadx3 Usamiaq SeouaIaHa
(1v6°LeL) - swua] Jyeuag ul sbueyn
00'652'Ger'e 00'680°296'€ SL¥'85L'E 99%'990°¢ §99'GLZ'e ze1L'v28'T 1800 Jseusiu]
000151667 00'86'GEL'Y BEY'ETI'E €85°189°¢ 8v.129'9 052'9€9'G 180D 90IMIBS
JJouIsIig a8yl yim pajeloosse
d3d0 jo aleys cho_toao._u s,91e18
%000 %000 %000 %000 %000 %000 %000 Auna
g3dO [e10} 8y} jo abejusasad
e se uonisod jau Ateonpy uejd
%000 %000 %000 %000 %000 %000 %000 lloiAed sako|dwa-paianod sy Jo
abejusoiad e se (Josse) Ayjiqell 9340
18U 8y} Jo aleys ajeuoiodoid s oulsIg
00'668'622'€2 00'788'€59'¥Z 00'900°G69°6Z 00'€L€£°200°92 00'205'609°62 00°€5€'709'92 00'681'Ger'LT lloied pasanod sjouisiq
00'0L¥'S0Y'9LL 00'608°888'201 00'€9€'8VL'¥6 00'C16'180°G8 00'69V'9VY'LEL 00'9¥°096'€ZL 00'165'995°90L $ [ejoL

00°0L¥'SOY'9LL

%000

00'608'888°20L

%000

00°€9€'8Y.'¥6

%000

00Z16°180°'G8 00'69v'9vY'LEL 009.%'096°€ZL

%000 %000 %000

00°'165°995°901 ousIg 8y} yim pajeroosse (josse) Aiqel)

g3d0 18U 8y} Jo aseys sjeuoniodoud s,9381S

(yesse) Alig
g3d0 18U 8y} Jo sjeuoiodoid sjouysig

%000 (1esse) Aniq

9l0c

Ll0c

8L0¢

6L0C 0c0c (X404

SIe9A [eDS|4 UAASS JseT]

g3d0 18U 8y} jo uoiodoud sjouisiq
220

pun4 Ajinuuy pue uoisuad ,S1ayoea] pue wajsAg Juawainay aakodw3 oanqnd
A311qe17 93dO 19N 9y} Jo aieys ajeuoiiodold $39L3SIA Y} 4O BNPaYOS

1OI41S1d TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

78



SPECIAL REVENUE FUND




{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



saunypuadxe (1apun) 190 SaNUEARI Jo (Aou

001099' 000v2'29 S6'5Z8'LE 00'9£9°'9 £8289'21 008971 08'5L0°L 0026871 00'90v'Z £6285'SS 00'8Z7'04
001099'9 00'0v2'29 S6'528'LE 00'9€9°'9 £8'289'21 00'8€9°ZL 08'5L0°SL 0026821 009052 £6'285'SS 00’8504
- 00'0v2'L9 00'198'22 - - - - - - - -
00'0v2'29 00'198'22
001000 - S6'796' - - - - - - - -
S6V96'
000007
001099 - - 00'989°'9 £8'280'L1 0086971 08'5L0°EL 0026821 0090V £6'285'5S 00'827°04
00’8504
001099 00'9£9°'9
£8'289'L1 0086971 08'50°L 0026821 00'90v'2 £6'285'5S
001099'9 000v2'29 S6'528'LE 00'9£9'9 £8'289'21 00891 08501 0026871 009062 £6'285'SS 00'825'04
001099° 000v2°29 S6'SZELE 00'9£9°'9 £8289'21 00'8€9°ZL 08'SL0°L 0026821 00'90v'Z £6285'SS 00’8270k
Ssoualemy ‘soueualURly Riunoag ABojouyoa ). BuiSInN Uoonasu) Yoeads uoneoyissely abenbuen puooes uoneonp3 SooqeL
sjewy jeide g spas janduon janduon aygnduon Jeuswaiddng aA10aLI0D 3 uoeuwex3 v sy usiiug fiopesusdwon janduon
Jooyos JueBlows vas PV peddeolpuer] ofignduoN v Alelixny ofjanduoN

| obed
13

£202 ‘0€ 9UNF Papu3 Jea, [edsty 104
siseq Kiejobpng
sainjpuadx3 pue anuaAsy Jo anpaydg Bujuiquiod
pung enuansy [eoeds

10141810 TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

0€ aunr ‘souefeg pung

| Ain “souejeg puny

1Jop) $s80X3

SmolNo [ejo L

Spuny JayI0 oy Jojsuel].
(sasn) sa0unos Bujoueul JBYIO

saJnyipuadxa [ejo]

$I0049S JBHEYD O} Jajsuel]

SB0IAIS UOJONLISUCO PUE LORISINIE SORII0L} €01

Juswdinba feuononis

uoN
Juawdinba [euononnsu|

“AJBS "JSUOD PUE UO)

ssoinas poddns el

SONIAOY JUSPMIS
spieme sdiysIe|ouos
sjeuojew pue saiddng
lonei].
(swuelb-jooyos pue swoy
usam}aq UBY) JOY)0) S80IAIBS PajIBUOD
sjuswsaibe juiof

~(100UDS PUE BUIOY UBBMIAG) SBOINIBS PEOBIUOD

seojnes paseyoind 1BUI0

S30IALBS [BO1UL0R) PaseyoINg

soueuajuiew pue eda) ‘Buiuesld

seoiias onpejjoid peseyoind JBUI0

VEelS pesH - uonng.

Siysusq seko[dwa -S8AINISS [BULOSISd
LIS paijey/peleUILIB L

o} sjuaLAed uoneoeA pasnun
s10oea} J}Sew § SaYOEOD AoBIal|

‘S8U0R0D UjRW ‘SIOJR}IOR) JO SLIBES

1 ussed Aunwwiod

PUE UO! uaJed/Ajiwey jo saueles

souefes JsyI0
SJUEISISSE [EOIBJO PUE [BLIEJ2I08S JO SBLE[ES
1e1s [euoissajold Jaylo 1o Saeles
sJojoaulp weiboud Jo saueles
uoponJsul Jo siosiaadns Jo saueles
:se0in8s poddng

uononAsul feloL.

$0/q0 JeY0
syooqIxeL
sayddns eseusg
seojnes paseyoind 1BUI0
se01ns [eUOISSaJ0ud JBIO
S001S [B0IUL93) pue “Joud paseyoind
UoNONIISUL 10} SBLEIES JAYI0
siayoes) Jo Seliefes
‘uoonssu|
SFUNLIONIAXI

senuonas jejoL.
se01n0g (€907

sa01n0 [esopa
se0in0g aleIg

SINNIAIY

79



00°€LE'9 9,'926'1€ 00'668 00'658'062 00°204'€€ 00°18L'vE 86°92L'S 06'261'22L \eszraTy 08755'8L6'
00'8S€'¥6L 00'8SE'V6L
00°€LE'9 9,'926'1€ 00'668 00'658'062 00°204'€€ 00°18L'v€ 86922’ 06°261'22L LE'S8Y040'S 08216TLLY
- - - 22192’y - - - - 9€°0EL'8E9 9E'625'2VS
96'LEL'LSY 96°0€1'9GE
2z19z LY ov'86e'98L 0v'86€'981
- 00°005'9 00'€ G1'2/2'S52C - - 8€'9ZL'G 06'70.'SZ LG'6E0'EVS'T 9G'¥/0'GES'T
00'¢ 0'S26'LZ 8.'1¥0'0F £8'280'9¢
12011 1Z0LL'L
88'/E6'CLS 88°/€6'CLS
ey ey
00°00S'9 8€'9ZL'S 06'%0.'SZ -
L1516 VLL LSI6V'PLL
00055y 00°08S
1816Y'S9E 18'161'G9E
ST'eET'16L 12'66L'L2S 12'66L'L2S
0£'989'C 0£'989'
6Y'€0€'002 6¥°€0€'002
9gsHy'L 00008'% 00008'%
00'89L'LY 15'126'€92 15'126'€9C
0L'LLL'6S oL'LLL'6S
9,'28.'281 9.'28L'281
EV'81E'69 EY'8LE'69
Z6'GEL'EEL z6'SEL'eEl
00°€2E'9 9/'82Y'SZ 00°968 £9'628'/8Y 00'20}'€€ 00'18L'VE - 00'88%'L0L 7'G1E'628'L 88'80€'669'L
00'8zv'0L
00°€L8'9 oL'92v's 00'968 £9'605'821 96'998'004 96°0/5'16
00°204'€€ 00'18L'vE 00'88%'L0L -
95282 VL1
66'125'801 66°125'801
00'91€'65€ €6'G1Z'G6L'L €6'G12'6L°L
00°€2E'9 9/'826'LE 00668 00'658'06. 00'20}'€E 00'18L'VE 8€'9ZL'S 06'261'L2L LE'/ZL'9LZ'Y 08'755'826'C
00°€L8'9 0,'926'1€ 00'668 00'658'062 00°204'c€ 00°18L'vE 86°92L'S 0626122, -
Le'lzi'oLe'y 08'%55'826'¢
VIS VIS V ved V Hed |ooyosald g Jed |ooyosald oiseg-g ved olseg-g Hed spung Py
vV Hed V Hed 1 8L 1 8piL vIal g-yed vIal vIal e’s uoneonp3
1emL Janokued Jonokued vIal Jonokue jeroL jooyosaig
Jonokued

Z obeg
-3

£20Z ‘0€ 2un( GIAN3 ¥V3A ¥ISI4 FHL ¥O4
siseg Kieyobpng
‘saunjipuadx3 pue enuaaey Jo 9|npayas Bujuiquon
pun4 enueney [e1eds
LDI¥1SIA TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

s 0€ eunr ‘soueleg pung
| AInf ‘souefeg pun
saunyipuadxa (18pun) 1310 SanuBAa) Jo (Aouaiolyap) Sseoxg
smojno (el

o

oo

(sasn) seaunos Bujoueuy JaYI0

UojEoNp3 [e109ds - SPUN JBLIO WOy JBjSUBIL

seinypuadxe ejoL

SI00y9S JBHEYD O} Jajsuel)

SOOIAIBS UOIONIISUOD PUE UONISINDOE SBNIIoe) €J0L
Juswdinbe [eUORONASUI-UON
Juewdinba [euononssu
sBuipjing

AJ9S 'JSU0D pue uopisinboe sanje

seoinas poddns fejo

SaNIANOY JUBpNIS
spieme sdiysiejoyos
sjeuojew pue seyddng
lenes)
(syueiB-j00yos pue swoy
UBOMIB] UBY) J8U}0) SSOIAISS PBIOBAUOD
SjueLwaaIBe Julol
-(|ooyos pue awoy UseM}aq) SaOIAIBS PBJIBJUOD
seones paseyoind JaUi0
SB0IABS [B01UYD8) POSEYDING
soueusulew pue “iedas ‘Buiuesly
seoines onpajjoid paseyoind Joui0
e}S PeaH - uomn L
sjeuaq oako|dw -SBOIAIBS [BULOSIOd
4EIS paujey/paleUILIE |
0} sjuswiAed uoneoeA pasnun
SI8U0ES) JBISEW § SBYIE0D AoRIaY]

‘S8j0B0D UJeW ‘SIOJe}|I0B) JO SaUB|es
Sisife10ads JUBWBAIOAUI Jusied AUNWWIOD
pue uosiel| jussed/AiLE) Jo soueles
seuefes 1sy10
SJUBISISSE [EOIBJO PUE [BLIEI2103S JO SLE[ES
JEIs [euoissejoid Jauo Jo saLefeS
siooaup Weiboud Jo saueles
UoponAsul Jo siosiaedns Jo seueles
@s poddng

$90)

uononAsul [B10L

09190 oo
syo0qaL
soyiddns eseusg
seojnes peseyoind 1BUI0
se01nes [eUOISSaJ0Id JBUIO
Se0n8s [B01ULD3) pue “Joad paseying
oRoNIISUL 10} SaLE|eS JAYI0
s1ayoea} Jo sauiefes
uononsu

‘S3UNLIANIIX3

sanuanal (g0
520108 (2907
$90.N0S [e16PO4
$ 500108 ojRIS

SINNIAIY



¢ obed
-3

zz 8oL 218558 0004 €0ElSt 00'96€ 00'096'SH 00’505 8z8YezE)
zz 180k 248558 0004 €0elS't 00'96€ 00'096'sH 00'505' 8z8YezZ)
2211891 2.855°8 - - - 8160y 00'505'L 82006
zzisLTh 151602 05'906 2z'1001
00528
o005zt 00'5E8 S1'952'2h
05865 0598025
00622 sz 8LVEL'E \zeeee
00059 00098y 00'b9EC
- - 0004 £0°EIS') 00'96€ 28059'LL - 00'800°2E
0004 £0ElSL 00'96€ z88LLE
002858 00'800°2€
2211894 2.855'8 0004 £0EIS'L 0096 00'096'SH 00'505'L 928YE2TL
zz g0l 218558 0004 £0ElS'L 00'96€ 00'096'SH 00'508' 828vE'ZZ)
e ALOBL JuesBiuwy JuesBiuwy Juowseoueyu3 JuowsoueUI v veg v Hed
Jonokuen omL i1 oML abenbuen ysybuz abenbue oL e
Jenohued a1 - 1enokue) Jonokued

£202 ‘0€ 2uUnr 03ANS ¥VIA TvDSIH 3HL ¥Od
1seg Aiejobpng

sainjpuadx3 pue anuaAsy Jo anpaydg Bujuiquiod

puny enusasy eroeds

10141810 TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

$ 0€ unp ‘eouefeg pung

| AInp ‘soueleg puny

sainypuadxa (19pun) JoA0 SaNUBABI JO (Koualoyap) S$30X3

SMOJINO [ej0

Spun; JaUI0 Woyy Jojsuel].
(sasn) seaunos Bujoueuy JaYI0

seinypuadxe ejoL

SI00y9S JBHEYD O} Jajsuel)

SOOIAIBS UOIONIISUOD PUE UONISINDOE SBNIIoe) €J0L
Juswdinbe [eUORONASUI-UON
Juewdinba [euononssu
sBuipjing

AJ9S 'JSU0D pue uopisinboe sanje

seoinas poddns fejo

SaNIANOY JUBpNIS
spieme sdiysiejoyos
sjeusjew pue seyddng
lenes)
(syueiB-j00yos pue swoy
UBOMIB] UBY) J8U}0) SSOIAISS PBIOBAUOD
SjueLwaaIBe Julol
-(|ooyos pue awoy UseM}aq) SaOIAIBS PBJIBJUOD
seones paseyoind Jaul0
S80IAIBS [B01UYD8) POSBYDING
soueusjulew pue “iedas ‘Buiuesly
saoies onpayjoid paseyoind Jaupo
1e}S PeaH - uonin |
s)yeuaq 8akojdwa -S80IAI8S [BULOSIa
HEIS PaIIOY/PAIBUILLIS L
0] S)uewWARY UONEIEA PasnUn
SI8U0ES)] JBISEW § SBYIE0D AoRIaY]

‘$8U0B0D UJeW ‘SIOJE}I|IO.) JO SBLIE[eS
sisijerads juswaniorur ussed Aunwiwiod

pue uostel| juesed/je jo seuejes

salefes Joy0

SJUEISISSE [29U]0 PUE [LIEIBI0S JO SaLieles

Jyeis [euoissajoud Jayjo Jo Saviefes

s10103.1p Wesboud jo saLeles

uoponiIsul J0 siosiviedns Jo savefes

se0iAIes poddng

uononAsul [B10L

09190 oo
syo0qaL
soyiddns eseusg
seojnes peseyoind 1BUI0
se01nes [eUOISSaJ0Id JBUIO
Se0n8s [B01ULD3) pue “Joad paseying
oRoNIISUL 10} SaLE|eS JAYI0
s1ayoea} Jo sauiefes
uononsu

‘S3UNLIANIIX3

sanuanal (g0
520108 (2907
$90.N0S [e16PO4
$ 500108 ojRIS

SINNIAIY

81



0€ aunr ‘souefeg pung

| Ain “souejeg puny

saunypuadxe (1apun) 1aA0 sanuaAB) Jo (AoUBIoLEP) SS80XT

SmolNo [ejo L

Spuny JayI0 oy Jojsuel].
(sasn) sa0unos Bujoueul JBYIO

saJnyipuadxa [ejo]

$I0049S JBHEYD O} Jajsuel]

SB0IAIS UOJONLISUCO PUE LORISINIE SORII0L} €01

Juswdinba euoRonIsU-UON
Jswdinba jeuoponssul
sbuping

*AIBS "JSU0D puE UopISINboE SaRe

ssoinas poddns el

SOIAIOY JUBpNIS
Spieme SAUSIEIOUOS
sieualew pue sayddng

joneiy
(sjue1B-/0040S pUE BWOY

usam}aq UBY) JOY)0) S80IAIBS PajIBUOD

sjuswsaibe juiof

~(100UDS PUE BUIOY UBBMIAG) SBOINIBS PEOBIUOD

S80I PaseyDINg JaUI0
S90IAIBS [EDIUYB) PBSBYDING

soueuBUIeW pue “iieda) ‘BulUESID
seoiias onpejjoid peseyoind JBUI0

JielS pesH - uonL

Siysusq seKo[dwa ~S8AINISS [BULOSISd

el pauey/paleUIwIa ]
0} sjusWA®d UoREORA PESNUN

SIoYoBS} I8}SEW 1 SBYOEOD AoEI0y|
‘S8U0B0D UjBW ‘SIOJR}IIOR) JO SLIBES

0L°29€'L TTSLL'LSL - - - - - - - -
88°09¢€'L 01'€82'051 - - - - - - - -
289 chees - - - - - - - -
- 0L'50L'¢L L5'v08'69L'C £6'8LL'1T 26'2€0'81 S1'6EY'SE £5°2€8'61 8V'10'26L LT09v'ey 002L2've
- 0L'50L'eL L5'v08'69LC £6'8LL'1T 26'2€0'8L S1'6EY'8E £5°2€8'61L 8Y'¥10'26L LTogv'ey 002Le've
- - GE'9£8'/6€ 00'92.'02 - - - £1'6v8'62€ - -
€1°28L°104 00'92L°02 €1°190'18
22'6Y9'€0} 00°88€'95
00°007°26} 00°00¥'261
- 0£'50L'€L €1'10£'608 £6'250'L 26'€E8'Y | SLBEV'EL £L60v'L 0E'€.1'882 12°097'2y 0010228
0L'50L'¢L -
8€'621'L62 VEELL ST ISPy ¥Z0LY'esT
9'6v6'S YoVLE'S
S9°0v0'e S9'0v0'e
siolgel
82'26€'904 009.€'sL
19'9/€°04 19'9/€°04
58'199'€vT 1529 SLIEL'T €L607'L 19'96%'2 98'/8L°L 00°€9€'LL
98'SYY'L
59'260'8Z1 80°L1L8 00'80°0L 08'688'€l LL162'62 00'gee’te
- - 60°299'295'L - 00'661'€ 00°000'62 08'/2v'8L G0'266'8LL - 00°425'L
00'582 00'682
62'5EY'9ZE 00661'€ S0°166'951
00'9/8'2LL 00°005'€
08'¥SL'€0} 00°000'52 og'zy'sl oo9le'el 00°4b28'L
00'91€'65€
28'9 28'/€G'VL L5'708'69L'C £6'8LL'1C 26'2€0'8} S1'6EY'8E £5°268'61 8v'110'26L L2°097'2h 002L2'VE
289 28'LES'YL
L5'v08'69L'C £6'8LL'1T 26'2€0'81 S1'6EY'SE £5°€8'61 8V'10'26L LT09v'ey 002L2've
sdiysiejoyos sanIARRY spung 1l tinoA Buyers juswyouuz g Keq j00yos 1 ¥3ss3 wiesH uone.s|sody ¥3ss3
Juepns |esopady Ppue uaipiyo yoddng yesH Buiuies Jowwng oy} puokeg [ejuay Buiuwsesa]
le1oL ssojpWOH [EJUSI SSLIN paseg eousping paseg eousping Jov suoneudoiddy [ejuswaiddng Jaliay pue asuodsey SMIIBUCIOD
(i) UBld anosey UBouBLY
€202 ‘0€ 2unf 3ANI ¥VIA TVOSId IHL ¥O4
siseg Aiejebpng
‘saunjipuadx3 pue enuaaey Jo 9|npayas Bujuiquon
pun enusnay [e1oads
v obed LJ1¥1S10 TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

-3

1 uesed Aunuwwod

puE osIel| Jueed/AlLE) J0 SaLEleS

sale[es JYI0

SJUBJSISSE [BOLIBIO PUE [BLIEJO.09S JO SOLE[ES
Jeys Jeuoissajoid oY JO SoLEleS

sJojoaulp weiboud Jo saueles

uoponJsul Jo siosiaadns Jo saueles

:seopss poddng

uononAsul feloL.

$0/q0 JeY0

syooqIxeL

sayddns eseusg

seojnes paseyoind 1BUI0
se01ns [eUOISSaJ0ud JBIO

Se0lAIBS [B0IUYOB} PUE “Joid PaseyoIng

uojonAsul Joj seuefes 1BYI0
s1840e8) JO SaLeles
:uoponssu|
SIUNLIANIAX3

senuonas jejoL.
se0In0g (€907

sa01n0 [esopa
se0in0g aleIg

‘SINN3AIY

82



26'28Y'2S 1

26'28Y'TS1

86°€V9'LGL

6'8€8

86'€Y9'LSL

¥6'8€8

92°691'290'L

88'/€2'18

89'G56'C

sv'izi'e 81°969 - S0

S90vL

00'8S€E' V6L

92°/25'198'L

88'/€2'18

89'G56'C

- sv'izi'e 81'969 - vS0L

S90vL

1/'996'GE0'L

60'615'€5S
29'2¥0'062
00°00%'Z61

9E'€G8'2EV'E

2.°215'08

89'G56'C

- SL00L'E - - ys oL

S9°0vL

04'S0L'€L
81°086'EVE
L6'6LL'L
€5'8/6'GLS

1S1¥9'eL
82'26€'90}
¥2'898'v2)
00085y
18'16V'G9€
9019V LLL
0€'989'C

6°'€0€'002

98'5¥Z'9

2TY10'Z6E
OL'LLL'6S
91281281
£7'81€'69
T6'SEL'EEL

0L'S0L'EL

20°208'9

89'G56'C

sL'ook'e S0

S9°0vL

69°20.'26E'E

91°62L

- 0€'lT 81969 - -

00'682
00'82¥'0L
[Sk4 k144
00'9/8'2LL
9528Z'vLL
649/2'21S
€6'185'7SS'L

oe'le 81'969

0£'800'890'2

28'9.0'28

89'G56'C

- Sh'iz'e 81'969 - 501

S9°0bL

89°L

28'9/0'28
1G'¥08'69L'C
LELZL9LZ'Y

28'9/0'28

89'G56'C

- sv'izi'e 81'969 - S0

S90vL

89°L

le1oL

12907 [E10L.

spung

g abeg
-3

sioqyblaN
BuysunoN
SjoEN Bwoy

WINPY [0S - piemay]
deig puoosg

ssaullam wen

ABojouyoa |

Kesiop moN jueg pooy

Aunuwog

leany

€202 ‘0€ 2unf 3ANI ¥VIA TVOSId IHL ¥O4
siseg Kiejabpng
‘saunjipuadx3 pue enuaaey Jo 9|npayas Bujuiquon
pun enusnay [e1oads

10141810 TOOHIS dIHSNMOL NOLTINVH

UopIES AUlEsH
aIeOBUBHY

siad
M-8id
aueonuEy

$ 0 aunr ‘eoueleg pung

(payessal) | Ainp ‘soueleg puny

saunypuadxe (1apun) 1aA0 sanuaAB) Jo (AoUBIoLEP) SS80XT

SmolNo [ejo L

Spuny JayI0 oy Jojsuel].
(sasn) sa0unos Bujoueul JBYIO

saJnyipuadxa [ejo]

$I0049S JBHEYD O} Jajsuel]

SO0IAIGS UOJONIISUOD PUE UOISINbOE SaNIIoe) (B0
Juswdinba euoRonIsU-UON
Jswdinba jeuoponssul
sbuping

*AIBS "JSU0D puE UopISINboE SaRe

ssoinas poddns el

SOIAIOY JUBpNIS
Spieme SAUSIEIOUOS
sieualew pue sayddng

lonei].
(swuelb-jooyos pue swoy

usam}aq UBY) JOY)0) S80IAIBS PajIBUOD
sjuswsaibe juiof

~(100UYOS PUE BWOY USBMIBQ) SBOIIBS PBIIBIUOD

Se0IMIBS PasEyaINg JaUI0

S80IABS [BO1UYDB) PASBYDINg

soueusulew pue ‘iedas ‘Buiuesly

seoinies onpayjoid peseyoind Joyi0

JeYS pesH - uomn |

SoUSq 99K0|dWB -S3IIAIBS [BUUOSIT
LEIS paey/PaleUILIE |

0} sjusLARg UONEORA pasnun
s10YoEa) JaISEW § SOYIE0O AoBsa|

‘$840B0D UjeW ‘SIOJe}08) O Seueles

1uesed Ayunwwod
pUE UOSel| JusIed/AlILE) O SOLIEeS
souefes JsyI0
SJUEISISSE [EOIBJO PUE [BLIEJ2I08S JO SBLE[ES
1e1s [euoissajoid Jaylo Jo SaLeles
sJojoaulp weiboud Jo saueles
uoponJsul Jo siosiaadns Jo saueles

:seopss poddng

uononsul [ejo)
$0/q0 JeY0

Syooqxe L
B

1ddns [essusg
seojnes paseyoind 1BUI0
se01ns [eUOISSaJ0ud JBIO
S001S [B01UL93) pue “Joud paseyoind
UoNONIISUL 10} SBLEIES JAYI0
siayoes) Jo Seliefes
suoonssu|
SFUNLIONIAXI

senuaAal ejo]
5800 €907
$80IN0S [esopoy

$ 500108 0jElS

‘SINN3AIY

83



HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Preschool Education Aid
Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

E-2

Budgeted Actual Variance
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Salaries of Teachers $ 1,291,113.00 1,195,215.93 95,897.07
Other Salaries for Instruction 524,774.00 408,521.99 116,252.01
Other Purchased Services 4,000.00 4,000.00
General Supplies 240,220.29 91,570.96 148,649.33
Total Instruction 2,060,107.29 1,695,308.88 364,798.41
Support Services:
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 133,430.00 133,135.92 294.08
Salaries of Program Directors 69,951.00 69,318.43 632.57
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 230,604.00 182,782.76 47,821.24
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 88,620.70 59,171.10 29,449.60
Other Salaries 265,104.00 263,921.57 1,182.43
Salaries of Family/Parent Liaison and
Community parent involvement specialists 5,070.00 4,800.00 270.00
Salaries of Facilitators, Math Coaches,
Literacy Coaches and Master Teachers 233,889.00 200,303.49 33,585.51
Personnel Services - Employee Benefits 972,488.30 530,485.51 442,002.79
Tuition - Head Start 377,145.00 365,491.81 11,653.19
Purchased Professional Educational Services 53,500.00 550.00 52,950.00
Cleaning, repair and maintenance 234,066.00 114,491.57 119,574.43
Travel 54,500.00 1,170.27 53,329.73
Contracted Transportation Services 573,538.00 572,937.88 600.12
Miscellaneous Purchased Services 950.00 431.42 518.58
Supplies and Materials 84,125.00 36,082.83 48,042.17
Total Support Services 3,376,981.00 2,535,074.56 841,906.44
Facilities acquisition and const. serv.:
Instructional equipment 190,000.00 186,398.40 3,601.60
Noninstructional equipment 467,652.00 356,130.96 111,521.04
Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services 657,652.00 542,529.36 115,122.64
Total Expenditures $  6,094,740.28 4,772,912.80 1,321,827.49
Total Revised 2022-23 Preschool Education Aid Allocation 3,631,287.00
Add: Actual ECPA Carryover (June 30, 2022) 2,250,655.29
Add: Budgeted Transfer from General Fund 2022-23 794,358.00
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Available for 2022-23 Budget 6,676,300.29
Less: 2022-23 Budgeted Preschool Education Aid
(including prior year budgeted carryover) 5,300,382.29
Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2023 1,375,918.00
Add: June 30, 2023 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid 1,321,827.49
Less: 2022-23 Commissioner-approved Transfer to the General Fund -
2022-23 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid Program 2,697,745.49

2022-23 Preschool Education Aid Carryover Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2023-:
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund
Sumary Schedule of Projects Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues and other Financing Sources
Local Source: bond premium $ -
Bond proceeds and transfers -

Total revenues -

Expenditures and other Financing Uses

Purchased professional and technical services -
Legal services -
Other purchased professional services -
Land and improvements

Construction services 75,098.00
Furniture & equipment purchases -
General supplies -
Other objects -

Total expenditures 75,098.00

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to debt service fund -
Adjustment to prior year fund balance -

Total other financing sources (uses) -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (75,098.00)
Fund balance - beginning 1,939,911.54
Fund balance - ending $ 1,864,813.54
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Capital Projects Fund

F-2a

Schedule of Projects Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Renovations, Alterations, and Improvements to Elementary and Middle Schools

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revenues and other Financing Source
Bond proceeds and transfers

Total revenues

Expenditures and other Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services
Legal services

Other purchased professional services
Construction services

Furniture & equipment purchases

General supplies

Other objects

Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfer to debt service fund

Adjustment to prior year fund balance
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project number

Grant date

Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs

21,973,000.00 21,973,000.00 21,973,000.00
21,973,000.00 - 21,973,000.00 21,973,000.00
635,072.16 635,072.16 1,5662,771.64
35,994.34 35,994.34 52,878.12
1,445,021.72 1,445,021.72 1,454,368.92
17,883,366.80 75,098.00 17,958,464.80 18,755,243.14
9,393.72 9,393.72 3,238.52
57,859.96 57,859.96 144,499.66
20,066,708.70 75,098.00 20,141,806.70 21,973,000.00

1,906,291.30 (75,098.00) 1,831,193.30 -

1940-055-18-1000
1940-060-18-1000
1940-120-18-1000

N/A
10/16/18
21,973,356.00
21,973,000.00
21,973,356.00

21,973,356.00

0.00%

91.67%
8/31/20
8/31/20

George L. Hess Educational Complex ($12,212,873)
Joseph C. Shaner Memorial Elementary ($5,513,241)
William Davies Middle School ($4,247,242)
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund

F-2b

Schedule of Projects Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Installation of Energy Savings Equipment

From Inception and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Revised
Prior Current Authorized
Periods Year Totals Costs
Revenues and other Financing Sources
Bond proceeds and transfers 5,665,000.00 5,665,000.00 5,665,000.00
Local funds: bond premium 562,182.30 562,182.30 562,182.30
Total revenues 6,227,182.30 - 6,227,182.30 6,227,182.30
Expenditures and other Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services 1,118,003.00 1,118,003.00 1,118,003.00
Legal services - -
Other purchased professional services - -
Construction services 4,874,340.12 4,874,340.12 4,903,522.00
Furniture & equipment purchases - -
General supplies - -
Other Objects 201,218.94 201,218.94 205,657.30
Total expenditures 6,193,562.06 - 6,193,562.06 6,227,182.30
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to debt service fund -
Adjustment to prior year fund balance -
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 33,620.24 - 33,620.24 -
Additional project information:
Project number N/A
Grant date N/A
Bond Authorization Date 10/16/18
Bonds Authorized 5,665,000.00
Bonds Issued 5,665,000.00
Original Authorized Cost 6,227,182.30
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost 6,227,182.30
Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage Completion 99.46%
Original target completion date 1/31/20
Revised target completion date 1/31/20
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Interfund Receivable
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets:

Equipment

Accumulated depreciation
Total fixed assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Interfund payable
Accounts payable
Unearned revenue

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences
Due within one year
Due beyond one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net positiol

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds

Combining Schedule of Net Position

June 30, 2023

$

G-1

Food Kids Corner Community
Service Program Education 2023
1,509,656.17 225,250.15 400,151.58 2,135,057.90
3,372.88 3,372.88
83,468.25 83,468.25
41,409.01 5,405.00 500.00 47,314.01
5,023.06 5,023.06
23,221.77 23,221.77
1,666,151.14 230,655.15 400,651.58 2,297,457.87
385,256.14 2,352.72 38,681.92 426,290.78
(363,500.71) (2,352.72) (37,214.48) (403,067.91)
21,755.43 - 1,467.44 23,222.87
1,687,906.57 230,655.15 402,119.02 2,320,680.74
9,863.24 5,023.06 11,891.75 26,778.05
- 1,248.94 1,248.94
13,440.98 13,440.98
23,304.22 6,272.00 11,891.75 41,467.97
33,506.49 33,506.49
33,506.49 - - 33,506.49
56,810.71 6,272.00 11,891.75 74,974.46
21,755.43 - 1,467.44 23,222.87
1,609,340.43 224,383.15 388,759.83 2,222,483.41
1,631,095.86 224,383.15 390,227.27 2,245,706.28
1,687,906.57 230,655.15 402,119.02 2,320,680.74
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Enterprise Funds
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2023

Non-Major Funds

G-2

Food Kids Corner Community Total
Service Program Education Non-Major Funds 2023
OPERATING REVENUES:
Local Sources:
Daily sales- reimbursable programs
School lunch and breakfast program $ 315,952.60 - 315,952.60
Daily sales non- reimbursable programs 69,331.35 - 69,331.35
Special functions 31,233.21 - 31,233.21
Community/Kids Corner service activities 29,941.67 287,188.25 373,094.10 660,282.35 690,224.02
Miscellaneous 3,415.00 - 3,415.00
Total Operating Revenues 449,873.83 287,188.25 373,094.10 660,282.35 1,110,156.18
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales-reimbursable programs 169,024.76 169,024.76
Cost of sales-non-reimbursable programs 550,957.28 550,957.28
Salaries 560,510.57 270,350.73 121,150.91 391,501.64 952,012.21
Employee benefits 178,181.77 41,734.64 10,130.40 51,865.04 230,046.81
Supplies & Materials 90,570.29 38,515.08 31,608.17 70,123.25 160,693.54
Depreciation 2,535.49 1,476.24 1,476.24 4,011.73
Other expenses 289,281.68 7,207.10 17,236.80 24,443.90 313,725.58
Total operating expenses 1,841,061.84 357,807.55 181,602.52 539,410.07 2,380,471.91
Operating income/(loss) (1,391,188.01) (70,619.30) 191,491.58 120,872.28 (1,270,315.73)
Nonoperating revenues:
State sources
State school lunch program 19,230.68 19,230.68
Reduced Breakfast 4,912.80 4,912.80
Reduced Lunch 12,944.00 12,944.00
Breakfast After the Bell 13,127.10 13,127.10
Summer Feeding Program 200.90 200.90
Federal sources
National school lunch program 912,864.67 912,864.67
National school breakfast program 276,355.60 276,355.60
HHFKA Performance Based 23,025.04 23,025.04
Summer Food Service Program
National school lunch program 6,139.41 6,139.41
Summer Food Service program Administrative Fee 626.75 626.75
Supply Chain Assistance Funding 139,984.44 139,984.44
Local Food for Schools Co-op 2,397.38 2,397.38
P-EBT Administrative Costs 3,256.00 3,256.00
Food Distribution Program 107,972.60 107,972.60
Interest revenue 12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 3,989.96 16,253.85
Total nonoperating revenues 1,5635,301.26 1,908.93 2,081.03 3,989.96 1,5639,291.22
Net income/(loss) 144,113.25 (68,710.37) 193,572.61 124,862.24 268,975.49
Other financing sources (uses):
Loss on disposal of fixed assets (2,600.00) - (2,600.00)
Net position, July 1 1,489,582.61 293,093.52 196,654.66 489,748.18 1,979,330.79
Net position, June 30 $ 1,631,095.86 224,383.15 390,227.27 614,610.42 2,245,706.28
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments for employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Payments to cost of sales
Net cash provided/(used) for operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

State Sources
Federal Sources

Payments from other funds
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Net cash (used) by capital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest and dividends
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances—beginning of year
Balances—end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating income/(loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash provided
by/(used for) operating activities
Depreciation and net amortization
Federal commodities
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase) in other receivables
(Decrease) in interfund payable
Increase in accounts payable
Increase in deferred revenue
(Decrease) in compensated absences
Total adjustments
Net cash provided/(used) for operating activities

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
All Proprietary fund Types and Similar Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

G-3

Food Latckey Community Total

Service Program Education Enterprise
416,563.07 285,714.13 372,594.10 1,074,871.30
(560,510.57) (276,928.04) (121,150.91) (958,589.52)
(184,530.81) (41,734.64) (10,130.40) (236,395.85)
(379,851.97) (44,473.24) (48,844.97) (473,170.18)
(618,404.83) (618,404.83)
(1,326,735.11) (77,421.79) 192,467.82 (1,211,689.08)
50,462.98 - - 50,462.98
1,484,668.39 - - 1,484,668.39
(895.69) - 10,015.66 9,119.97
1,534,235.68 - 10,015.66 1,544,251.34
(2,669.38) (2,669.38)
(2,600.00) (2,600.00)
(5,269.38) - - (5,269.38)
12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 16,253.85
12,263.89 1,908.93 2,081.03 16,253.85
214,495.08 (75,512.86) 204,564.51 343,546.73
1,295,161.09 300,763.01 195,587.07 1,791,511.17
1,509,656.17 225,250.15 400,151.58 2,135,057.90
(1,391,188.01) (70,619.30) 191,491.58 (1,270,315.73)
2,535.49 - 1,476.24 4,011.73
107,972.60 - - 107,972.60
(6,407.15) - - (6,407.15)
(33,310.76) (1,474.12) (500.00) (35,284.88)
(2,672.95) (6,577.31) (9,250.26)
1,248.94 1,248.94
2,684.71 - - 2,684.71
(6,349.04) - - (6,349.04)
64,452.90 (6,802.49) 976.24 58,626.65
(1,326,735.11) (77,421.79) 192,467.82 (1,211,689.08)
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Rate per $100 of Assessed Value
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Township of Hamilton Board of Education Overlapping Rates
Greater
General Egg Municipal
Obligation Total Atlantic Harbor Local Total Direct and

Basic Rate ? Debt Service® Direct County Regional Purpose Overlapping Tax Rate
Fiscal
Year
Ended

June 30,

2014 0.731 0.134 0.863 0.475 0.519 0.770 2.627
2015 0.818 0.144 0.962 0.520 0.559 0.837 2.878
2016 0.840 0.140 0.980 0.495 0.593 0.850 2918
2017 0.895 0.134 1.029 0.571 0.602 0.863 3.065
2018 0.908 0.134 1.042 0.569 0.640 0.863 3.114
2019 0.974 0.053 1.027 0.593 0.725 0.882 3.227
2020 0.988 0.058 1.046 0.590 0.702 0.881 3.219
2021 1.001 0.059 1.060 0.576 0.689 0.894 3.219
2022 1.025 0.057 1.082 0.590 0.660 0.894 3.226
2023 1.042 0.057 1.099 0.653 0.690 0.952 3.394

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector

Note: NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy . The levy when added to other
components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by more than the spending growth

limitation calculation.

a The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the Net valuation taxable.

b Rates for debt service are based on each year's requirements.
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Property Tax Levies and Collections,
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year of

Year the Levy Collections in
Ended Taxes Levied for Percentage of Subsequent

June 30, the Fiscal Year Amount Levy Years

2014 19,676,001 19,676,001 100% -
2015 19,625,352 19,625,352 100% -
2016 20,116,473 20,116,473 100% -
2017 20,543,460 20,543,460 100% -
2018 21,516,713 21,516,713 100% -
2019 21,810,416 21,810,416 100% -
2020 21,037,491 21,037,491 100% -
2021 21,548,489 21,548,489 100% -
2022 21,533,569 21,533,569 100% -
2023 22,114,006 22,114,006 100% -

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note:

School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute,
a municipality is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the
amount voted upon or certified prior to the end of the school year.
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value ? of
June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita °
2014 18,934,000 - 18,934,000 0.83% 710
2015 15,054,000 - 15,054,000 0.72% 570
2016 11,624,000 - 11,624,000 0.55% 445
2017 8,709,000 8,709,000 0.42% 335
2018 5,697,000 5,697,000 0.27% 222
2019 30,342,000 30,342,000 1.48% 1,178
2020 29,130,000 29,130,000 1.41% 1,129
2021 27,725,000 27,725,000 1.37% 988
2022 26,265,000 26,265,000 1.28% 933
2023 24,930,000 24,930,000 1.21% 885
Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

a See Exhibit NJ J-6 for property tax data.
b Population data can be found in Exhibit NJ J-13.
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Personal
Income Per Capita
(thousands of Personal Unemployment

Year Population ® dollars) ° Income ° Rate ¢
2014 26,665 1,151,155 43,171 9.60%
2015 26,409 1,161,309 43,974 9.60%
2016 26,143 1,169,507 44,735 8.60%
2017 25,979 1,202,932 46,304 6.80%
2018 25,633 1,233,204 48,110 6.60%
2019 25,748 1,319,508 51,247 5.60%
2020 25,796 1,439,468 55,802 5.00%
2021 28,070 1,636,762 58,310 16.50%
2022 28,155 1,641,718 58,310 9.50%
2023 28,155 1,641,718 58,310 5.20%

Source:

a Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
April 1, 2013 to July 1, 2022

b Personal income is calculated by multiplying per capita income by the population

¢ Per Capita Income computed using Census Bureau midyear population estimates.
Estimates for 2012-2021 reflect county population estimates available as of March 2022.

d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2023

Unaudited

Property, Inland Marine and Automobile Physical Damages
A. Limit of Liability

ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention, per occurrence

Members District Deductible, per occurrence

Perils Included
B. Property Valuation

Buildings and Contents

Contractors Equipment

Automobiles

Boiler and Machinery

A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

Crime

A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

General and Automobile Liability
A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

Workers' Compensation

A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

Educator's Legal Liability

A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

Pollution Legal Liability/Mold Legal Liability
A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible - Pollution Incident
Members District Deductible - Mold Incident

Cyber Liability

A. Limit of Liability
ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention
Members District Deductible

Coverage

J-20
Page 1 of 2

Deductible

175,000,000
250,000

"All Risk"
Replacement Cost

Actual Cash Value
Replacement Cost

125,000,000
None

500,000
250,000

20,000,000
250,000

Statutory
250,000

20,000,000
250,000

3,000,000
None

2,000,000
None

500

1,000

500

None

None

None

25,000
100,000

50,000
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J-20

Page 1 of 2
HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2023
Unaudited
Coverage Deductible

Crisis Protection & Disaster Management Services
A. Limit of Liability 1,000,000

ACCASBOJIF Self Insured Retention None

Members District Deductible 10,000

Source: District Records (Coverage is through the Atlantic & Cape May Counties
Association of School Business Officials Joint Insurance Fund (ACCASBOJIF)
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PR
FORD - SCOTT

& ASSOCIATES, L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 HAVEN AVENUE « OCEAN CITY, NJ - 08226
PHONE 609.399.6333 < FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

K-1

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Hamilton Township School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Hamilton Township School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Township School
District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 27, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Hamilton Township
School District’s control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hamilton Township School District’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hamilton Township School District’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ford, Secott & Hsscciates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leow P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

November 27, 2023
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
REQUIRED BY UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE AWARDS (UNIFORM GUIDANCE);
AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Hamilton Township School District
County of Atlantic, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal & State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal & State Program

We have audited the Hamilton Township School District's compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Hamilton Township
School District's major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Hamilton
Township School District's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Hamilton Township School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal & State Program

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and NJ OMB 15-08. Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Hamilton Township School District and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on compliance for each major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal
determination of the Hamilton Township School District’'s compliance with the requirements referred to
above.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to its Federal
and State programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the Hamilton Township School District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the
Uniform Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08 will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk
of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about Hamilton Township School District’'s compliance with
the requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding Hamilton Township School District's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Hamilton Township School District’s internal control over compliance
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance
and NJ OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Hamilton Township School District’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of noncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance or NJ OMB 15-08.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
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compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have not been
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ford, Scott & ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leon P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

November 27, 2023
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Exhibit K-5
Hamilton Township Board of Education

Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include
federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Hamilton Township School District. The Board
of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal and state
awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1
to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular Uniform Guidance, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements. The District has elected not to
use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current
budget year, which is mandated pursuant to NJSA 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes payments are not
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or more
June state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the
accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with NJSA
18A:22-44.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from budgetary basis to GAAP basis is ($158,245.60) for the general
fund and $(76,867.52) for the special revenue fund. See the following schedule for a reconciliation of the
budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a
GAAP basis as follows:

{This space intentionally left blank}

126



Hamilton Township Board of Education
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance

June 30, 2023

Exhibit K-5

State Assistance:

Actual amounts
(budgetary) “revenues”
from the Schedule of
Expenditures of State
Financial Assistance

Difference — budget to
“GAAP”

State aid payment
recognized for GAAP
statements in the current
year, previously recognized
for budgetary purposes

State aid payment
recognized for budgetary
purposes, not recognized
for GAAP statements until
the subsequent year.

Grant accounting
budgetary basis differs
from GAAP in that
encumbrances are
recognized as
expenditures, and the
related revenue is
recognized.

Total State revenue as
reported on the statement
of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund

Special Debt Service Food Service
General fund Revenue fund fund fund Total
$ 40,130,054.00 4,216,127.31 763,830.00 50,415.48 45,160,426.79
2,616,439.50 295,910.00 2,912,349.50
(2,774,685.10) (295,910.00) (3,070,595.10)
(296,271.37) (296,271.37)
$ 39,971,808.40 3,919,855.94 763,830.00 50,415.48 44,705,909.82

balances

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Exhibit K-5

Hamilton Township Board of Education
Notes to the Schedules of Financial Assistance
June 30, 2023

Special Food Service
General Fund Revenue Fund Fund Total

Federal Assistance:

Actual amounts (budgetary)
"revenues" from the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards $198,303.24 2,769,804.57 1,472,621.89 4,440,729.70

Difference - budget to "GAAP"
Grant accounting budgetary basis
differs from "GAAP" in that
encumbrances are recognized as

expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized. 219,803.38 219,803.38

Total Federal revenue as reported

on the statement of revenue,

expenditures, and changes in

fund balance $198,303.24 2,989,607.95 1,472,621.89 4,660,533.08

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports.

NOTE 5 - OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. The amounts reported as TPAF Pension
Contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the district for the year ended June
30, 2023. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2023.
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Exhibit K-6

HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Part | -- Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statement Section

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified yes X no
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified yes X no

Type of auditor's report on compliance for
major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with Section 510(a)
of OMB Circular Uniform Guidance? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.01A / S010A220030 ESEA - Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Child Nutrition Cluster:

10.553 / 221NJ304N1199 School Breakfast Program
10.555 / 221NJ304N1199 Naational School Lunch Program
10.559 / 221NJ304N1199 Summer Food Service Program for Children

Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
84.425D / S425D210027 Relief Fund (ESSER Il); Learning Acceleration;
Mental Health

American Rescue Plan (ARP)
Elementary and Secondary School Emergency
Relief Fund (ESSER Ill); Accelerated Learning
Coaching and Educator Support; Evidence
Based Summer Learning and Enrichment;
Evidence Based Comprehensive Beyond the
School Day; NJTSS Mental Health Support

84.425U / S425U210027 Staffing; Homeless Children and Youth Il
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no n/a
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HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Part | -- Summary of Auditor's Results

State Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified yes X no

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to

be reported in accordance with NJ OMB

Circular 15-08? yes X no
Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program

State Aid Public Cluster:

495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-084 Categorical Security Aid
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
495-034-5120-014 Categorical Transportation Aid
495-034-5094-003 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $1,054,460

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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EXHIBIT K-6
HAMILTON TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Part 2 -- Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

None

Part 3 — Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

None

EXHIBIT K-7
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

None
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